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Disclosure Standards 3014
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ASC 210-20: Offsetting 3015

ASC 210-20-45-9

Assurance That a Right of Setoff Is Enforceable in a Bankruptcy under
FASB Interpretation No. 39 3016

PART I: GENERAL GUIDANCE
ASC 210-10: OVERALL

OVERVIEW

The distinction between current and noncurrent assets and liabilities in a classi-
fied balance sheet is an important feature of financial reporting. There is consid-
erable interest in the liquidity of the reporting enterprise, and the separate
classification of current assets and liabilities is an important aspect of liquidity
analysis.

BACKGROUND

In the ordinary course of business, there is a continuing circulation of capital
within the current assets. For example, a manufacturer expends cash for materi-
als, labor, and factory overhead that are converted into finished inventory. At the
point of sale, inventory usually is converted into trade receivables and, on
collection of receivables, is converted back to cash. The average time elapsitip
between expenditure of cash and receiving the cash back from the collectior, of
the trade receivable is called the operating cycle. One year is used as a‘basis for
segregating current assets in the usual case where more than one operaving cycle
occurs within a year. When the operating cycle is longer than one year, as with
the lumber, tobacco, and distillery businesses, the operating.cycle is used for
segregating current assets. In the event that a business clearly has ne operating cycle,
the one-year rule is used (ASC 210-10-45-3).

Frequently, businesses have a nafural business year, at the end of which the
company’s activity, inventory, and trade receivables are at their lowest point.
This is often the point in time selected as the end of the entity’s accounting
period for financial reporting purposes.

BASIC DEFINITIONS

Current Assets

Resources that are expected to be realized in cash, sold, or consumed during the
next year (or longer operating cycle) are classified as current assets. Current
assets are sometimes called circulating or working assets; cash that is restricted as
to withdrawal or use for other than current operations is not classified as a
current asset (ASC 210-10-45-4).
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PRACTICE NOTE: This definition of current assets demonstrates the impor-
tance of professional judgment in determining the proper treatment of certain
items. The words “expected to be realized” indicate that management intent is
important. The same item could be a current asset for one company and not a
current asset for another company due to differences in management intent.

The primary types of current assets are cash, cash equivalents, secondary
cash resources, receivables, inventories, and prepaid expenses (ASC 210-10-45-1).

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Includes cash and cash equivalents, such as cash on deposit, cash awaiting
deposit, and other cash funds that are available for current operations. Cash
Equivalents consist of short-term, highly liquid investments that are (a) readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and (b) so near their maturities that they
present insigniticant risk of changes in value because of changes in interest rates.

Secondary ash Resources

A zuiunon type of secondary cash resources is marketable securities that are
Jvaiable for current operations.

Receivables

Include trade accounts, notes, and acceptances receivable, as well as receivables
from officers and employees, if collectible in the ordinary course of business
within one year.

Inventories

Include merchandise, raw materials, work in process, finished goods, operating
supplies, and ordinary maintenance material and parts.

Prepaid Expenses

Include prepaid insurance, interest, taxes, advertising, unused royalties, current
paid advertising not received, and operating supplies. Prepaid expenses, unlike
other current assets, are not expected to be converted into cash; but, if they had
not been paid in advance, they would require the use of current assets during the
operating cycle.

Asset valuation allowances for losses, such as those for receivables and
investments, are deducted from the assets or groups of assets to which the
allowances relate. (ASC 210-10-45-13).

Current Liabilities

Current liabilities are obligations for which repayment is expected to require the
use of current assets or the creation of other current liabilities.
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PRACTICE POINTER: The definition of current liabilities is based on the
asset category from which the liability is expected to be retired rather than on a
specific period of time. As a practical matter, however, most current liabilities are
expected to be retired during the period of time encompassed by the definition of
current assets. Care should be taken, however, to identify instances where
liabilities that are due in the near future should be classified as noncurrent
because they will not require the use of current assets. Examples are short-term
obligations expected to be refinanced that meet certain specified criteria and
noncurrent liabilities that are near their maturity but that will be paid from
noncurrent assets (e.g., bond sinking funds).

There are several common types of current liabilities (ASC 210-10-45-8):

Payables from Operations

Include items that have entered the operating cycle, which include trade pay-
ables and accrued liabilities such as wages and taxes.

Debt Maturities

Include amounts expected to be liquidated during the current operating cycle,
such as short-term notes and the currently maturing portion of long-term debt.

Revenue Received in Advance

Includes collections received in advance of services, for example, prepaid sub-
scriptions and other deferred revenues. This type of current liability is tytically
liquidated by means other than the payment of cash (e.g., delivery of\products,
provision of services).

Other Accruals

Include estimates of accrued amounts that are expected to be required to cover
expenditures within the year for known obligations (a) when the amount can be
determined only approximately (provision for accrued bonuses payable) or (b)
when the specific person(s) to whom payment will be made is (are) unascertaina-
ble (provision for warranty of a product) (ASC 210-10-45-6).

Working Capital and Related Ratios

Working capital is the excess of current assets over current liabilities, and it is
often used as a measure of the liquidity of an enterprise (ASC 210-10-05-5).

Changes in Each Element of Working Capital

The changes in each element of working capital are the increases or decreases in
each current asset and current liability over the amounts in the preceding year.
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lllustration of Determining Working Capital

Working
Capital
Increase or
20X8 20X9  (Decrease)
Current Assels:
Cash $10,000 $ 15,000 $ 5,000
Accounts receivable, net 25,000 35,000 10,000
Inventory 50,000 60,000 10,000
Prepaid expenses 1,000 500 (500)
Total current assets $86,000 $110,500 $ 24,500
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable $10,000 $15,000  $(5,000)
Notes navable-current 20,000 15,000 5,000
Acciued expenses 1,000 1,500 (500)
1 otal current liabilities $31,000 $ 31,500 $ (500)
Nat working capital $55,000 $ 79,000
Increase in working capital $24,000

The current ratio, or working capital ratio, is a measure of current position and
is useful in analyzing short-term credit. The current ratio is computed by divid-
ing the total current assets by the total current liabilities.

lllustration of Current Ratio

20X8 20X9
Current assets $86,000 $110,500
Current liabilities 31,000 31,500
Working capital $55,000 $79,000
Current ratio (86 + 31), (110.5
31.5) 2.81 3.5:1

The acid-test or quick ratio is determined by dividing those assets typically closest
to cash by total current liabilities. The assets used to calculate this ratio consist of
only the most liquid assets, typically cash, receivables, and marketable securities.

PRACTICE POINTER: Only receivables and securities convertible into cash
are included; restricted cash and securities are excluded.
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lliustration of Acid-Test Ratio

20X8 20X9
Cash $10,000 $15,000
Receivables, net _25,000 35,000
Total quick assets $35,000 $50,000
Total current liabilities $31,000 $31,500
Acid-test ratio (35 + 31), (50 +
31.5) 1.1:1 1.6:1

PRACTICE POINTER: Inventory is excluded from the numerator in calculat-
ing the quick/acid-test ratio. Whether the current or quick/acid-test ratio is a
better measure of liquidity may depend on the accounting method used for
inventory. Where the LIFQ inventory method is used, the current asset amount of
inventory consists of the oldest costs and may not be a fair representation of the
current value of the inventory. This would make the acid test/quick ratio the
preferred liquidity measure. On the other hand, if the FIFO inventory method is
used, the current asset amount of inventory represents an amount closer to the
current cost, making the current ratio a more logical measure of liquidity.

RECEIVABLES

Accounts receivable are reported in the financial statements at net realizable
value. Net realizable value is equal to the gross amount of receivables lesg an
estimated allowance for uncollectible accounts.

Two common procedures of accounting for uncollectible accounts ate (1) the
direct write-off method and (2) the allowance method.

Direct Write-Off Method

This method delays the recognition of bad debt expense until a specific account is
determined to be uncollectible. The conceptual weaknesses of the direct write-off
method are:

e Bad debt expense may not be recognized in the same reporting period as
the related sale.

e Accounts receivable are overstated, because no attempt is made to ac-
count for the unknown bad debts included therein.

Ordinarily, the direct write-off method is not considered U.S. GAAP, be-
cause it results in a mismatching of revenues and expenses (i.e., expenses are
recognized in a later period than the revenue to which they relate), overstating
the amount of assets and understating the amount of expense. The method may
be acceptable in situations where uncollectible accounts are immaterial in
amount.
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Allowance Method

The allowance method recognizes an estimate of uncollectible accounts each
period, even though the specific individual accounts that will not be collected
cannot be specifically identified at that time. Estimates of uncollectible accounts
usually are made as a percentage of credit sales or ending receivables. This
method is consistent with ASC 450 (Contingencies), as explained below.

Under ASC 450, a contingency exists if, at the date of the financial state-
ments, an enterprise does not expect to collect the full amount of its accounts
receivable. Under this circumstance, an accrual for a loss contingency must be
recognized, if both of the following conditions exist:

e It is probable that as of the date of the financial statements an asset has
been impaired or a liability incurred, based on information available
before the issuance of the financial statements.

e The amount of the loss can be estimated reasonably.

If both of the above conditions are met, an accrual for the estimated amount
of uncallectible receivables is made even though the specific uncollectible receiv-
ables vannot be identified at the time of the accrual. An enterprise may base its
estirnate of uncollectible receivables on its prior experience, the experience of
ather enterprises in the same industry, the debtor’s ability to pay, or an appraisal
of current economic conditions.

PRACTICE NOTE: Estimates of uncollectible amounts are usually made in
the aggregate for all credit sales rather than being based on individual accounts.
A predictable percentage of credit sales or outstanding accounts receivable are
common approaches used to estimate uncollectibles for a reporting period.

Significant uncertainty may exist in the ultimate collection of receivables if
an enterprise is unable to estimate reasonably the amount that is uncollectible. Tf
a significant uncertainty exists in the ultimate collection of the receivables, the
installment sales method, cost-recovery method, or some other method of reve-
nue recognition may be used. In the event that both of the above conditions for
accrual are not met and a loss contingency is at least reasonably possible, certain
financial statement disclosures are required by ASC 450.

lllustration of Accounting for Uncollectible Accounts
by the Allowance Method

AMB Co. estimates uncollectible accounts at 1% of credit sales. For the current
year, credit sales totaled $1,000,000. The year-end balances in accounts receiv-
able and the unadjusted allowance for uncollectible accounts are $250,000 and
$15,000, respectively.

The entry to record uncollectible accounts ($1,000,000 x 1% = $10,000) is
as follows:

Bad debt expense 10,000
Allowance for uncollectible accounts 10,000
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The balance sheet includes accounis receivable of $250,000, allowance for
uncollectible accounts of $25,000 ($15,000 + $10,000), and net accounts receiv-
able of $225,000 ($250,000 - $25,000).

When a specific uncollectible account is written off (e.g., $2,100), the
following entry is reguired:

Allowance for uncollectible accounts 2,100
Accounts receivable (specific account) 2,100

This entry has no effect on the amount of net accounts receivable, because
both the receivables balance and the allowance balance are reduced by the
same amount.

If the estimate of uncollectibles is based on the ending balance of accounts
receivable, the same procedure is followed, except that the existing balance in
the allowance would require consideration. For example, if uncollectible ac-
counts were estimated at 9% of the ending balance in accounts receivable, the
bad debt expense for the year would be $7,500, computed as follows:

Required allowance ($250,000 x 9%) $22,500
Balance before adjustment 15,000
Required adjustment $ 7,500

The balance sheet includes accounts receivable of $250,000, an allowance
of $22,500, and a net receivables amount of $227,500.

A variation on the previous method is to "age” accounts receivable, a
procedure that provides for recognizing an increasing percentage as uncollecti-
ble as accounts become increasingly delinquent. For example, applying this
procedure to the $250,000 receivables balance above might result in the

following:
Within 30 30 Days 60 Days  Posi0 Days
Days Overdue Overdue Overdue
Accounts receivable
balance $120,000 $50,000 $50,00.0 $30,000
Uncollectible % 2% 7% 12% 25%
Uncollectible balance $2,400 $3,500 $6,000 $7,500

The total uncollectible balance is $19,400, ($2,400 + $3,500 + $6,000 + $7,500),
resulting in the recognition of bad debt expense of $4,400, assuming a previous
allowance balance of $15,000 ($19,400 - $15,000 = $4,400).

Discounted Notes Receivable

Discounted notes receivable arise when the holder endorses the note (with or
without recourse) to a third party and receives a sum of cash. The difference
between the amount of cash received by the holder and the maturity value of the
note is called the discount. If the note is discounted with recourse, the assignor
remains contingently liable for the ultimate payment of the note when it becomes
due. If the note is discounted without recourse, the assignor assumes no further
liability.
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The account “discounted notes receivable” is a contra account, which is
deducted from the related receivables for financial statement purposes. The
following is the procedure for computing the proceeds of a discounted note:

1. Compute the total maturity value of the note, including interest due at
maturity.

2. Compute the discount amount (the maturity value of the note multiplied
by the discount rate for the time involved).

3. The difference between the two amounts (1, less 2) equals the proceeds
of the note.

lllustration of Discounted Notes Receivable

A $1,000 90-day 10% note is discounted at a bank at 8% when 60 days are
remaining to maturity.

Maturity-—&1,000 + ($1,000 x .10 x 90/360) $1,025.00

Discount—$1,025 % .08 x 60/360 13.67

Freceeds of note $1,011.33
ractoring

Factoring is a process by which a company converts its receivables into immedi-
ate cash by assigning them to a factor either with or without recourse. With
recourse means that the assignee can return the receivable to the company and get
back the funds paid if the receivable is uncollectible. Without recourse means that
the assignee assumes the risk of losses on collections. Under factoring arrange-
ments, the customer may or may not be notified.

Pledging

Pledging is the process whereby the company uses existing accounts receivable as
collateral for a loan. The company retains title to the receivables but pledges that
it will use the proceeds to pay the loan.

CASH SURRENDER VALUE OF LIFE INSURANCE

The proceeds of a life insurance policy usually provide some degree of financial
security to one or more beneficiaries named in the policy. Upon death of the
insured, the insurance company pays the beneficiary the face amount of the
policy, less any outstanding indebtedness.

Insurable Interest

An owner of an insurance interest in life insurance need only exist at the time the
policy is issued, while an insurable interest in property insurance must exist at
the time of a loss. An insurable interest is a test of financial relationship. A
husband may insure the life of his wife, an employer the life of an employee, a
creditor the life of a debtor, and a partner the life of a copartner.
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An investment in a life insurance policy is accounted for at the amount that
can be realized by the owner of the policy as of the date of its statement of
financial position. Generally, the amount that can be realized from a life insur-
ance policy is the amount of its cash surrender value. The increase in the cash
surrender value of an insurance policy for a particular period is recorded by the
owner of the policy and the cash surrender value is included as an asset in its
statement of financial position. The insurance expense for the same period is the
difference between the total amount of premium paid and the amount of increase
in the cash surrender value of the policy.

lliustration of Insurable Interest

An enterprise is the owner and sole beneficiary of a $200,000 life insurance
policy on its president. The annual premium is $16,000. The policy is starting its
fourth year, and the schedule of cash values indicates that at the end of the
fourth year the cash value increases $25 per thousand. The enterprise pays the
$16,000 premium, and the journal entry to record the transaction is as follows:

Life insurance expense—officers 11,000
Cash surrender value—life insurance policy (200 x $25) 5,000
Cash 16,000

The cash surrender value of a life insurance policy is classified either as a
current or noncurrent asset in the policy owner’s statement of financial position;
depending upon the intentions of the policy owner. If the policy owner interids
to surrender the policy to the insurer for its cash value within its nermal
operating cycle, the cash surrender value is classified as a current assef in the
statement of financial position. If there is no intention of collecting th='policy’s
cash value within the normal operating cycle of the policy owwey, the cash
surrender value is classified as a noncurrent asset in the statemeni of financial
position.

LIABILITY CLASSIFICATION ISSUES

ASC 480 more clearly defines the distinction between liabilities and equity. ASC
480 also establishes standards for issuers of financial instruments with character-
istics of both liabilities and equity related to the classification and measurement
of those instruments.

Current Obligations Expected to Be Refinanced

ASC 210 establishes U.S. GAAP for classifying a short-term obligation that is
expected to be refinanced into a long-term liability or stockholders” equity. ASC
210 applies only to those companies that issue classified balance sheets (ASC
210-10-15-3). ASC 470 provides guidance on when a short-term obligation can be
excluded from current liabilities and classified as non-current.
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Callable Obligations

ASC 470 establishes U.S. GAAP for the current/noncurrent classification in the
debtor’s balance sheet of obligations that are payable on demand or callable by
the creditor.

Compensated Absences

For guidance regarding the proper accrual of the liability for employees’ com-
pensated absences, see ASC 420.

OFFSETTING ASSETS AND LIABILITIES—GENERAL

Offsetting is the display of a recognized asset and a recognized liability as one net
amount in a financial statement. If the amount of the recognized asset is the same
as the amount of the recognized liability, then the net or combined amount of
both is zero, and, as a result, no amount would appear in the financial statement.
If the two aincunts are not the same, the net amount of the two items that have
been offszt 15 presented in the financial statement and classified in the manner of
the larger item.

45C 210-20 discusses the general principle of offsetting in the balance sheet
in the context of income tax amounts and provides the following guidance:

o Offsetting assets and liabilities in the balance sheet is acceptable only
where a right of setoff exists.

e This includes offsetting cash or other assets against a tax liability or other
amounts owed to governments that are not, by their terms, designated
specifically for the payment of taxes.

e The only exception to this general principle occurs when it is clear that a
purchase of securities that are acceptable for the payment of taxes is in
substance an advance payment of taxes that are payable in the relatively
near future.

The general principle of financial reporting, which holds that offsetting
assets and liabilities is improper except where a right of setoff exists, usually is
considered in the context of unconditional receivables from and payables to
another party. ASC 210 extends this general principle to conditional amounts
recognized for contracts under which the amounts to be received or paid or the
items to be exchanged depend on future interest rates, future exchange rates,
future commodity prices, or other factors.

Pour criteria that must be met for the right of setoff to exist (ASC
210-20-45-1):

1. Each party owes the other party specific amounts.

2. The reporting party has the right to set off the amount payable, by
contract or other agreement, with the amount receivable from the other

party.
3. The reporting party intends to set off.

4. The right of setoff is enforceable at law.
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OBSERVATIONS: The importance of managerial intent is apparent in the
third criterion, which states that the reporting party infends to set off its payable
and receivable. When all of these conditions are met, the reporting entity has a
valid right of setoff and may present the net amount of the payable or receivable
in the balance sheet.

Generally, debts may be set off if they exist between mutual debtors, each
acting in its capacity as both debtor and creditor. State laws and the U.S.
Bankruptcy Code may impose restrictions on or prohibitions against the right of
set off in bankruptcy under certain circumstances.

lllustration of Offsetiing Assets and Liabilities

The offsetting of assets and liabilities is an important issue to consider when

determining financial statement presentation of current assets and current liabili-

ties. Any time items are set off, information that would otherwise be available is

lost. In addition, important financial statement relationships may be altered when

assets and liabilities are set off. Consider the following example:

Current Assets

Receivable from M Co. $100

Other assets __400
$500

Current Liabilities
Payable to M Co. $75

Other liabilities _iB
1950
Current ratio (500/250) - 2:1

Now, consider the same situation, except the $75 payable to M Cn. iv offset
against the $100 receivable from M Co.:

Current Assets
Net receivable from M Co. ($100 - $75) $25
Other assets __400
$425
Current Liabilities
Other liabilities $175
Current ratio (425/175) 2.41

When offsetting is applied, the individual amounts of the receivable and
payable are not presented, and only the net amount of $25 is present in the
balance sheet. Further, the current ratio is significantly altered by the offsetting
activity. This is a simple example, but it illustrates the impact of offsetting, and
thus its importance as a financial statement reporting issue.

An exception to the general offsetting rule exists for derivative contracts
executed with the same counterparty under a master netting agreement. A
master netting agreement is a contractual agreement entered into by two parties
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to multiple contracts that provides for the net settlement of all contracts covered
by the agreement in the event of default under any one contract. For such
derivative contracts, assets and liabilities may be offset and presented as a net
amount even if the reporting entity does not meet the requirement in ASC 210
that the reporting entity has the intent to net settle. Offsetting derivative assets
and liabilities under this exception is an election and the reporting entity must
apply the election consistently.

Many sources of authoritative accounting standards specify accounting
treatments that result in offsetting or in a balance sheet presentation that has an
effect similar to offsetting. ASC 210 is not intended to modify the accounting
treatment in any of those particular circumstances.

OFFSETTING OF DERIVATIVES, PURCHASE AND REPURCHASE
AGREEMENTS, AND SECURITIES LENDING TRANSACTIONS

ASC 210 provides specific guidance as to when payables under repurchase
agreements-can be offset with receivables under reverse repurchase agreements.
These criteria are (ASC 210-20-45-11):

1.-The agreements are executed with the same counterparty.
7. The agreements have the same settlement date, set forth at inception.

3. The agreements are executed in accordance with a master netting
arrangement.

4. The securities under the agreements exist in “book entry” form and can
be transferred only by means of entries in the records of the transfer
system operator or securities custodian.

5. The agreements will be settled on a securities transfer system that
operates in the manner described below, and the enterprise must have
associated banking arrangements in place as described below. Cash
settlements for securities transferred are made under established bank-
ing arrangements that provide that the enterprise will need available
cash on deposit only for any net amounts that are due at the end of the
business day. It must be probable that the associated banking arrange-
ments will provide sufficient daylight overdraft or other intraday credit at
the settlement date for each of the parties.

6. The enterprise intends to use the same account at the clearing bank (or
other financial institution) to settle its receivable (i.e., cash inflow from
the reverse purchasing agreement) and its payable (i.e., cash outflow to
settle the offsetting repurchase agreement).

If these six criteria are met, the enterprise has the option to offset. That
choice must be applied consistently.

The third criterion refers to a “master netting arrangement.” A master
netting arrangement exists if the reporting entity has multiple contracts, whether
for the same type of conditional or exchange contract or for different types of
contracts, with a single counterparty that are subject to a contractual agreement
that provides for the net settlement of all contracts through a single payment in a

single currency in the event of default on or termination of any one contract
(ASC 210).
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The fourth criterion refers to “book entry” form. ASC 210 considers this a
key element because it provides control over the securities. The controlling
record for a “book entry” security is maintained by the transfer system operator.
A securities custodian that has a security account with the transfer system
operation may maintain “subsidiary” records of “book entry” securities and may
transfer the securities within its subsidiary records; however, a security cannot be
traded from the account of that custodian to a new custodian without a “book
entry” transfer of the security over the securities transfer system. This form of
accounting record facilitates repurchase and reverse repurchase agreement trans-
actions on securities transfer systems.

For a transfer system for repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements to
meet the fifth criterion, cash transfers must be initiated by the owner of record of
the securities notifying its securities custodian to transfer those securities to the
counterparty to the arrangement. Under associated banking arrangements, each
party to a same-day settlement of both a repurchase agreement and a reverse
repurchase agreement would be obligated to pay a gross amount of cash for the
securities transferred from its counterparty, but the party would be able to
reduce that gross obligation by notifying its securities custodian to transfer other
securities to that counterparty the same day (ASC 210-20-45-14).

In the fifth criterion, the term probable has the same definition as in ASC 450,
meaning that a transaction or event is more likely to occur than not. The phrase
“daylight overdraft or other intraday credit” refers to the feature of the banking
arrangement that permits transactions to be completed during the day when
insufficient cash is on deposit, provided there is sufficient cash to cover the nef
cash requirement at the end of the day.

ASC 210 requirements apply to recognized derivatives accourited for in
accordance with Topic 815, including bifurcated embedded derivatives, repur-
chase agreements and reverse repurchase agreements, and securities borrowing
and securities lending transactions that are offset in accordance with either
Topics 210 or 815. These requirements are also applicable for recognized deriva-
tive instruments accounted for in accordance with Topic 815 that are subject to an
enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement, irrespective of
whether they are offset in accordance with Topic 210 or 815 (ASC 210-250-2).

DISCLOSURE STANDARDS

Current assets and current liabilities must be identified clearly in the financial
statements, and the basis for determining the stated amounts must be disclosed
fully (ASC 210-10-05-5). The following are the common disclosures that are
required for current assets and current liabilities in the financial statements or in
notes thereto:

e (Classification of inventories and the method used (e.g.,, FIFO, LIFO,
average cost) ‘

e Restrictions on current assets
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e Current portions of long-term obligations

o Description of accounting policies relating to current assets and current
liabilities

e Accounts receivable and notes receivable from officers, employees, or
affiliated companies, if material, must be reported separately in the finan-
cial statements (ASC 310-10-45-13).

The above disclosure requirements apply to both of the following:

a. Recognized financial instruments and derivative instruments that are
offset.

b. Recognized financial instruments and derivative instruments that are

subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agree-
ment~(ASC 210-20-50-1)

Disclosure 13 required of information to enable users of an entity’s financial
statements to evaluate the effect or potential effect of netting arrangements on its
finaivial position. This includes the effort or potential effect of rights of offset
sssociated with the entity’s recognized assets and liabilities. (ASC 210-20-50-2) To
meet this objective, the entity must disclose at the end of the reporting period the
following quantitative information:

1. The gross amounts of those recognized assets and liabilities.

2. The amounts offset to determine the net amounts presented in the
statement of financial position.

3. The net amounts presented in the statement of financial position.

4. The amounts subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or
similar arrangement:

a. The amounts related to recognized financial instruments and other
derivative instruments that either management makes a policy elec-
tion not to offset or do not meet some of the guidance in ASC
210-20-45 or 815-10-45.

b. The amounts related to financial collateral, including cash collateral.

5. The net amounts after deducting the amounts in (4) from the amounts in
(3). (ASC 210-20-50-3)

The above information is required in a tabular form, separately for assets and
liabilities unless another format is more appropriate. (ASC 210-20-50-4) A
description of the rights of offset associated with an entity’s recognized assets
and liabilities subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar
agreement is required. (ASC 210-20-50-5) If the information above is presented in
more than one note to the financial statements, cross-references between notes is
required. (ASC 210-20-50-6)
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ASC 310-10-05-5, 05-7; 25-3, 25-6, 25-8; 25-13; 30-7; 35-41 through 35-43,
35-46 through 35-49; 45-2, through 45-3; 50-2 through 50-11; ASC
310-20-15-3; 50-1; ASC 460-10-35-3; 45-1: ASC 460-605-25-7; ASC
825-10-35-1 through 35-3; ASC 835-30-15-1; ASC 860-20-50-5; ASC
860-50-15-3; ASC 860-50-40-2, 40-6; ASC 860-942-15-2 through 15-3; ASC
942-210-45-1 through 45-2; ASC 942-305-05-2; 45-1; 50-1; ASC

© 942-310-15-2; ASC 942-320-50-4; ASC 942-325-25-1 through 25-3; 35-1
through 35-4; ASC 942-360-45-2; ASC 942-405-25-1 through 25-4; 35-1;
45-1 through 45-4; 50-1; ASC 942-470-45-1 through 45-2; 50-2 through 50-3;
ASC 942-505-50-1H through 50-7; ASC 942-825-50-1 through 50-2; ASC
944-320-50-1; ASC 948-10-15-3; 50-2 through 50-5

Accounting by Certain Entities (Including Entities with Trade Receivables)
That Lend to or Finance the Activities of Others
ASC 310-10-25-7; 35-52
Difference between Initial Investment and Principal Amount of Loans in a
Purchased Credit Card Portfolic
ASC 310-10-05-9; ASC 815-15-55-9, 55-10
Application of the AICPA Notice to Practitioners Regarding Acquisition,
Development, and Construction Arrangements to Acquisition of an
Operating Property

ASC 310-10-50-18; 310-30-05-2 through 05-3; 15-1 through 15-4, 15-6 through
15-10; 25-1; 30-1; 35-2 through 35-3, 35-5 through 35-8, 35-8 through 35-15;
40-1; 45-1; 50-1 through 50-3; 55-2, 55-5 through 55-29; 60-3

Accounting for Certain Loans or Debt Securities in a Transfer
ASC 310-10-35-2, 35-4, 35-6, 35-8, 35-15, 35-19, 35-25, 35-27, 35-34 through
35-36, 35-38; 55-1 through 55-6; 310-40-50-4; 310-45-20-60-3
Application of FASB Statements No. 5 and No. 114 to a Loan Portfolio
ASC 310-20: Nonrefundable Fees and Other Costs
ASC 310-20-05-3; 35-4, 35-6, 50-4
Amortization Period for Net Deferred Credit Card Origination Costs
ASC 310-20-05-4; 25-18; 35-8
Accounting for Individual Credit Card Acquisitions
ASC 310-20-35-11
Creditor’s Accounting for a Modification or an Exchange of Debi
Instruments
ASC 310-30: Loans and Debt Securities Acquired with Deteriorated Credit
Quality
ASC-310-30-35-13, 40-1 through 40-2: 310-40-15-11
Effect of a Loan Modification When the Loan Is Part of a Pool That Is
Accounted for as a Single Asset
ASC 310-40: Troubled Debt Restructurings by Creditors
ASC 310-40-15-3; 55-4; 470-60-15-3; 55-15
Classification of Debt Restructurings by Debtors and Creditors
ASC 310-40-40-1
Substituted Debtors in a Troubled Debt Restructuring
ASC 310-40-40-6, 55-1, 55-10A; ASC 310-10-50-11 , 50-35; ASC 270-10-50-1;
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Restructuring

18,021

18,024

18,025

18,027
18,931
+5 032
18,032

18,033

18,035
18,036
18,036
18,037
18,037

18,037

18,038

ASC 310—Receivables 18,003

310-40-40-6A, 40-7; 55-12
e valuation of Repossessed Real Estate 18,039
Hiustration of Valuation of Foreclosed Real Estate 18,040

5C 310-40-40-6 through 40-7B; ASC 310-10-40-1A
E Troubled Debt Restructurings by Creditors (ASC 310-40):
Classification of Certain Government-Guaranteed Morigage
Loans upon Foreclosure 18,041
ASC 310-40-40-8A, 40-9 . o
Accounting for Conversion of a Loan into a Debt Security in a Debt N—
estructuring R
: Hustration of the Conversion of a Loan into a Debt Security 18,044
ASC 310-40-40-10; 35-11; 55-13 through 55-15
Determination of Cost Basis for Foreclosed Assets under FASB Staternent
No. 15, Accounting by Debtors and Creditors for Troubled Debt '
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Accouting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assels 18,046
ASC 310-40-50-5; S50-1; 899-1
Anplicability of the Disclosures Required by FASB Statement No. _1 14
‘"hen a Loan Is Restructured in a Troubled Debt Restructuring into Two
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Loans 18,048
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Use of Zero Coupon Bonds in a Troubled Debt Restructuring 18,048

PART I: GENERAL GUIDANCE

FUTURE IMPACT OF ASU 2016-13: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS—
CREDIT LOSSES

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments—Cr.?dit Losses
(Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments. This updatle
creates a new ASC 326, Financial Instruments—Credit Losses. Because the update is
not effective until 2020 or later, coverage in this edition is limited to notiﬁcaﬁox_ls
of the future impact of ASU 2016-13. That update will be fully implemt_ented in
the 2020 GAAP Guide. Chapter 23, ASC 326—Financial Instruments—Credit Losses,
will include the primary coverage of ASC 326, and the impact of ASU 2016-13 on
other chapters will be incorporated, as appropriate.

Current GAAP require what is referred to as an incurrfad loss.m-et_hodology
for recognizing credit losses. This approach delays recognition until it is pmbab?e
that a loss has been incurred. Both financial institutions and users of t.hEEIT
financial statement expressed concern that this approach restricts the entity’s
ability to record credit losses that are expected, but that do not yet meet the
probable threshold.
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The primary objective of ASU 2016-13 is to provide information that g m
decision-useful about the expected credit losses on financial instruments -
other commitments to extend credit held by a reporting entity. The update w;
replace the incurred loss impairment methodology in current GAAP with
methodology that reflects expected credit losses. It requires consideration of !
broader range of reasonable and supportable information to support estimateg ]
credit losses. ASU 2016-13 affects entities that hold financial assets and o
investments in leases that are not accounted for at fair value through net inco;?t
This includes loans, debt securities, trade receivables, net investments in leag 3
off-balance-sheet credit exposures, reinsurance receivables, and any other fjn;?
cial assets that include the contractual right to receive cash and that are n .
specifically excluded from the scope of the update. i

A more extensive future impact statement regarding ASU 2016-13 can be

f:{)und at the beginning of Chapter 23, ASC 326—Financial Instruments—Cregdiy
0sses.

ASC 310-10: OVERALL

OVERVIEW

Receivables may arise from credit sales, loans, and other transactions. Receiy-
ables may be in the form of loans, notes, and other types of financial instruments
and may be originated by an entity or purchase from another entity. (ASC
310-10-05-4) Accounts receivable are reported at their net realizable value for (e
purposes of U.S. GAAP. Net realizable value is equal to the total amount oi the
receivables less an estimated allowance for uncollectible accounts. U.S: ¢ “AAP
also addresses how allowances for credit losses related to certain loans should be
determined, including how to recognize and measure loan impairment and how
to measure income on impaired loans.

In addition to providing general guidance on accounting ‘for receivables,
ASC 310 includes accounting for the following:

e Nonrefundable fees and other costs
® Loans and debt securities acquired with deteriorated credit quality
® Troubled debt restructurings by creditors (ASC 310-10-05-1)

BACKGROUND

A loan is impaired if, based on current information and events, it is probable that
the creditor will be unable to collect all amounts due according to the contractual
terms of the loan agreement, including both the contractual interest and the
principal receivable. For further discussion of troubled debt restructurings from

the perspective of the debtor, see the coverage of ASC 470-60 (Troubled Debt
Restructurings by Debtors).

Debt may be restructured for a variety of reasons. A restructuring of debt is
considered a troubled debt restructuring (TDR) if the creditor, for economic or
legal reasons related to the debtor’s financial difficulties, grants a concession to
the debtor that it would not otherwise consider. The concession may stem from
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ment between the creditor and the debtor, or it may be imposed by law

apTeE
z?cogtfrt (ASC Glossary).

GENERAL GUIDANCE ON RECEIVABLES

Receivables may arise from credit sales, loans, or other transactions. They may be
in the form of loans, notes, and other types of financial instruments and may be
b Iiginated by an entity or purchased from another entity. (ASC 310-10-05-4)

ASC 310 applies to a broad range of financial instruments and transactions,
including trade accounts receivable, loans, loan syndications, factoring arrange-
ments, standby letters of credit, and financing receivables. It does not apply to
mortgage banking activities or to a contract that is required to be accounted for
a5 a derivative instrument under ASC 8§15-10. (ASC 310-10-15-2 and 3)

Recognition

For the purposes of U.S. GAAP, accounts receivable are reported at their net
realizable w=lue. Net realizable value is equal to the total amount of the receiv-
ables less ai estimated allowance for uncollectible accounts.

i Inder ASC 450, an accrual for a loss contingency must be charged to income
‘. L4 of the following conditions are met:

e It is probable that as of the date of the financial statements an enterprise
does not expect to collect the full amount of its accounts receivable, based
on information available before the actual issuance of the financial state-
ments, and

» The amount of loss contingency (uncollectible receivables) can be reasona-
bly estimated.

If both of these conditions are met, an accrual for the estimated amount of
uncollectible receivables must be made even if the uncollectible receivables
cannot be identified specifically (ASC 310-10-35-9). An enterprise may base its
estimate of uncollectible receivables on its prior experience, the experience of
other enterprises in the same industry, the debtor’s ability to pay, and/or an
appraisal of current economic conditions (ASC 310-10-35-10).

Transfers of receivables under factoring arrangements that meet sale criteria
are accounted for by the factor as purchases of receivables. Factoring commis-
sions under these arrangements are recognized over the period of the loan
contract. That period begins when a finance company or an entity with financing
activities including trade receivables funds a customer’s credit and ends when
the customer’s account is settled. (ASC 310-10-25-3)

Regarding loan syndications and loan participants, each lender accounts for
the amount it is owed by the borrower. Repayments by the borrower may be
made to a lead lender that then distributes the collections to the other lenders in
the syndicate. In this situation, the lead lender is simply functioning as a servicer
and does not recognize the aggregate loan as an asset. (ASC 310-10-25-4)

When an entity purchases a credit card portfolio that includes the cardholder
relationships at an amount that exceeds the sum of the amounts due under the
credit card receivables, the premium between the amount paid and the sum of
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the balances of the credit card loans at the date of purchase is allocated between
the cardholder relationships and the loans acquired. The premium relating ¢,
cardholder relationships represents an identifiable intangible asset that is 2
counted for in accordance with ASC 350. (ASC 310-10-25-7)

Initial Measurement

When a note is received solely for cash and no other rights or privilege is
exchanged, the presumption is that the present value at issuance is measured b
the cash proceeds exchanged. If cash or some other rights or privileges arz
exchanged for a note, the value of the rights or privileges is given accountin
recognition in accordance with ASC 835-30-25-6. (ASC 310-10-30-2) %

Notes exchanged for property, goods, or services are valued and accounted
for at the present value of the consideration exchanged between the contractin
parties at the date of the transaction in a manner similar to that followed for 3
cash transaction. (ASC 310-10-30-3) The established exchange price of property,
goods, or services acquired for a note may generally be used to establish thé
present value of the note. If interest is not stated, the stated amount is unreasona-
ble, or the stated face amount of the note is materially different from the current
cash price for the same or similar items or from the fair value of the note, the
note, the sales price, and the cost of the property, goods, or services exchanged
for the note are recorded at the fair value of the property, goods or services or at
an amount that reasonably approximates the fair value of the note, whichever ig
more clearly determinable. In the absence of established exchange prices of the
property, goods, or services or evidence of the fair value of the note, the present
value of a note that stipulates either no interest or an interest rate that is clea rly
unreasonable is determined by discounting all future payments on the notes

using an imputed rate of interest as described in ASC 835-30. (ASC510-10-2
through 6) '

Loan Impairment

A loan is defined as “a contractual right to receive money ot demand or on fixed
or determinable dates that is recognized as an asset in the creditor’s statement of
financial position.” U.S. GAAP addresses how allowances for credit losses re-
lated to certain loans should be determined (ASC Glossary).

The following provide an overview of U.S. GAAP for loan impairment:

® Itis usually difficult to identify a single event that led to a particular loan
being uncollectible. The general concept in U.S. GAAP is that impairment
of receivable is recognized when, based on available evidence, it is proba-
ble that a loss has been incurred based on both past events and conditions
existing at the date of the financial statements.

® Losses are not recognized before it is probable that they have been
incurred, even though it may be probable based on past experience that
losses will be incurred in the future. It is not appropriate to consider
possible or expected future trends that may lead to additional Josses.
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o U.S. GAAP does not permit the establishment of allowances that are not
supported by appropriate analyses.

e The threshold for recognition of impairment is the same whether the
creditor has many loans or has only one loan. (ASC 310-10-35-4)

PRACTICE POINTER: U.S. GAAP does not specify how a creditor should
identify loans that are to be evaluated for collectibility. A creditor may apply its
normal loan review procedures in making that judgment. Guidance for this
decision is found in the AICPA’s Audit Procedure Study Auditing the Allowance
for Credit Losses of Banks and includes the following items:

o Materiality criterion

e Regulatory reports of examination

e [nternally generated listings such as “waich lists,” past due reports,
overdraft listings, and listings of loans to insiders

° M2znagement reports of total loan amounts by borrower

e distorical loss experience by type of loan

e ioan files lacking current financial data related to borrowers and
guarantors

e Borrowers experiencing problems such as operating losses, marginal
working capital, inadequate cash flow, or business interruptions

® Loans secured by collateral that is not readily marketable or that is
subject to deterioration in realizable value

e Loans to borrowers in industries or countries experiencing economic
instability

¢ Loan documentation and compliance exception reporis

ASC 310 ties accounting for an impairment of a loan directly to the criteria
established in ASC 450 (Contingencies) for recognizing a loss contingency. A
recognition of a loss is required when both of the following conditions are met:
® Information available before the financial statements are issued or are
available to be issued indicates that it is probable that an asset has been
impaired at the date of the financial statements.

¢ The amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. (ASC 310-10-35-8)

A loan is not considered impaired based on an insignificant delay or insig-
nificant shortfall in amount of payments. Whether the loss can be reasonably
estimated normally depends on the experience of the entity, information about
the ability of individual debtors to pay, and appraisal of the receivable in light of
the current economic environment. (ASC 310-10-35-10)

PRACTICE NOTE: Use of the term probable in ASC 310 is consistent with
its use in ASC 450. ASC 450 indicates a range of probability that must be
considered in the decision to accrue a loss contingency, including probable,
reasonably possible, and remote. Virtual certainty is not required before a loss
can be accrued. While ASC 310 changes the wording of ASC 450 as it relates to
loan impairments that require accrual, it does not change the overall intent of
applying the guidance related to loss contingencies.
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Measuring the impairment of a loan requires judgment and estimates, ang
the eventual outcome may differ from those estimates. Creditors have wide
latitude in developing measures that are practical in their circumstances. (ASQ
310-10-35-20)

Some impaired loans have risk characteristics that are unique to an indivig-
ual borrower which leads to evaluation on a loan-by-loan basis. Others have risk
characteristics in common with other impaired loans in which case the creditop
may aggregate those loans in measuring impairment. In aggregating loang,
factors to consider included historical statistics such as average recovery period
and average amount recovered, along with a composite effective interest rate in
measuring impairment. (ASC 310-10-35-21)

Following are brief descriptions, which are expanded in more depth in the
ASC, how this general principle is applied:

¢ Impairment generally is based on the present value of expected future
cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate. As a practical
matter, a creditor may measure impairment based on a loan’s observable
market price or on the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral
dependent. (ASC 310-10-35-22)

° If the fair value of the collateral is used to measure impairment of a
collateral-dependent loan and repayment or satisfaction of the loan is
dependent on the sale of the collateral, the fair value of the collateral is
adjusted for costs to sell. (ASC 310-10-23)

® Por measuring impairment on a loan-by-loan basis, the creditor shai
consider estimated costs to sell, on a discounted basis, if the costs ae
expected to reduce the cash flows available to repay or otherwise satisfy
the loan. (ASC 310-10-35-24)

® If a creditor bases loan impairment on a present value amount, the
creditor shall calculate the present value amount based on ‘ai estimate of
the expected future cash flows of the impaired loan, discounted at the
loan’s effective interest rate. (ASC 310-10-35-25)

e If the creditor bases its measurement of loan impairment on a present
value amount, the estimates of expected future cash flows shall be the
creditor’s best estimate based on reasonable and supportable assumptions
and projections. All available evidence, including costs to sell if those
costs are expected to reduce the cash flows available, are considered in
developing the estimate of expected future cash flows. (ASC 310-10-35-26)

® A creditor shall consider all available information reflecting past events
and current conditions when developing the estimate of expected future
cash flows. This includes existing environmental factors, such as existing
industry, geographical, economic, and political factors that are relevant to
the collectability of the loan. (ASC 310-10-35-27)

e If the loan’s contractual rate varies based on changes in an independent
factor, such as an index or rate, that loan’s effective interest rate may be
calculated based on the factor as it changes over the life of the loan or may
be fixed at the rate in effect at the date the loan meets the impairment
criteria. (ASC 310-10-35-28)
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After the initial measurement of impairment, if there is a significant chang'e
. the amount or timing of an impaired loan’s expected future cash ﬂows_, or if
i 1 cash flows are significantly different from the cash flows prevmu‘sly
aCh'lzcted, recalculation of the impairment and adjustment of the valuation
zﬁtgwance is required. (ASC 310-10-35-37)

—

PRACTICE POINTER: ASC 310-10-35 provides specific_guidance on the
subsequent measurement of the following specific types of receivables:

¢ Financial assets subject to prepayment ‘
¢ Standby commitments to purchase loans

¢ |oans and trade receivables not held for sale

e Nonmortgage loans held for sale

e Lecans not previously held for sale

~smortization of discount or premium on notes

= Premium allocated to loans purchase in a credit card portfolio

e Hedged portfolios of loans

Presentation Matters

Loan or trade receivables may be presented on the balance sheet as aggregate
amounts. Receivables held for sale shall be in a separate balance shelet category.
Major categories of loans or trade receivables shall be presented either in the
balance sheet or in notes to the financial statements. (ASC 310-45-2)

The change in present value from one reporting period. to tl'1e next may
result not only from the passage of time but also fronr} chapges in estimates of the
timing or amount of expected future cash flows. If impairment is based on the
present value of expected future cash flows, the entire change in present value
may be presented as bad-debt expense. Alternatively, the‘cred1t01:" may report the
change in present value attributable to the passage of time as interest income.
(ASC 310-10-45-5)

Current assets are cash and other assets expected to be realizec.1 m cash, sold,
or consumed during the normal operating cycle of the business. This includes:

* Trade accounts, notes, and acceptances receivable

® Receivables from officers, employees, affiliates, and others, if collectible in
the ordinary course of business within one year

¢ Installment or deferred accounts and notes receivable if thc.ey conform
generally to normal trade practices and terms within the business. (ASC
310-10-45-9)

Cash receipts from returns on loans and other debt instru:ments_,, and .eci[u‘ity
securities are classified in the statement of cash flows as operating activities.
Cash flows from purchases, sales, and maturities of available-for-sale securities

__—__————'
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are classified as investing activities and reported gross in the statement of cagh
flows. (ASC 310-10-45-10)

Disclosures

The summary of significant accounting policies shall include the following:
® The basis for accounting for loans and trade receivables;

® The method used in determining the lower of cost or fair value of
nonmortgage loan held for sale;

° The classification and method of accounting for interest-only strips loans,
and other receivables, or retained interest in securitizations that can be
contractually prepaid or otherwise settled in a way that the holder would
not recover substantially all of the recorded investment; and

® The method for recognizing interest income on loan and trade receivables,
including a statement about the entity’s policy for treatment of related
fees and costs, including the method of amortizing net deferred fees or
costs. (ASC 310-10-50-2)

If major categories of loans or trade receivables are not presented separately in
the balance sheet, they shall be disclosed in notes to the financial statements,
(ASC 310-10-50-3)

The allowance for credit losses (i.e., allowance for doubtful accounts) and
any unearned income, any unamortized premiums and discounts, and any nct
unamortized deferred fees and costs shall be disclosed in the financial state.
ments. (ASC 310-10-50-4) The policy for charging off uncollectible trade ac cunts
receivable that have a contractual maturity of one year or less and arose from the
sale of goods or services shall be disclosed. (ASC 310-10-50-4a)

PRACTICE POINTER: ASC 310-10-50-3 through 35 incli:oc 4 wide range
of disclosures required for different aspects of receivables aii loans in specific
circumstances. These include assets serving as collateral, nonaccrual and past
due financing receivables, accounting policies for off-balance-sheet credit expo-
sures, foreclosed and repossessed assets, allowance for credit losses related to
financing receivables, impaired loans, loss contingencies, risks and uncertain-
ties, fair value disclosures, credit quality information, modifications, loans in
process of foreclosure.

NONREFUNDABLE FEES AND OTHER COSTS
Please refer to Part II: Interpretive Guidance in this chapter for coverage of this
ASC subtopic.

LOANS AND DEBT SECURITIES ACQUIRED WITH DETERIORATED
CREDIT QUALITY

Please refer to Part II: Interpretive Guidance in this chapter for coverage of this
ASC subtopic.
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TROUBLED DEBT RESTRUCTURINGS BY CREDITORS

A troubled debt restructuring is one in which the creditor grants the debtor
certain concessions that would not normally be considered. The concessions are
made because of the debtor’s financial difficulty, and the creditor’s objective is to
maximize recovery of its investment. Troubled debt restructurings are often the
result of legal proceedings or of negotiation between the parties (ASC
310-40-15-5, 6).

Troubled debt restructurings include situations in which (ASC 310-40-15-9):

o The creditor accepts a third-party receivable or other asset(s) of the
debtor, in lieu of the receivable from the debtor.

o The creditor accepts an equity interest in the debtor in lieu of the receiva-
ble. (This is not to be confused with convertible securities, which are not
troubled debt restructurings.)

e The creditor accepts modification of the terms of the debt, including but
not-limited to:

-— Keduction in the stated interest,

— Extension of maturity at an interest rate below the current market rate,
— Reduction in face amount of the debt, and

— Reduction in accrued interest.

The reductions mentioned in the bulleted items above can be either absolute
or contingent.

For the purposes of ASC 310-40, troubled debt restructurings do not include
the following (ASC 310-40-15-11):

e Changes in lease agreements;

* Employment-related agreements, such as deferred compensation con-
tracts or pension plans;

® A debtor’s failure to pay trade accounts that do not involve a restructure
agreement; and

* A creditor’s legal action to collect accounts that do not involve a restruc-
ture agreement.

A troubled debt restructuring by a debtor in bankruptcy proceedings is
permitted under ASC 310 provided that the restructuring does not constitute a
general restatement of the debtor’s liabilities (ASC 310-40-15-10). ASC 310 requires
that a creditor account for all loans that are restructured as part of a TDR
involving a modification of terms as an impaired loan.

~Not all debt restructuring is considered troubled, even though the debtor is
in financial difficulty. Circumstances in which the restructuring is not troubled
include (ASC 310-40-15-12):

® The debtor satisfies the debt by giving assets or equity with a fair value
that at least equals either:

— The creditor’s recorded receivable, or

— The debtor’s carrying amount of the payable.
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® The creditor reduces the interest rate primarily in response to changes i
market rates.

® In exchange for the debtor’s debt, the debtor issues new debt securitieg
that have an effective interest rate that is at or near the current market
interest rate of debt with similar maturity dates and interest rates issued
by non-troubled debtors.

PRACTICE NOTE: If the debtor can obtain funds at current market rates

and conditions, this provides evidence that the restructuring is not a troubled
debt restructuring.

ey

A receivable or payable, referred simply as debt, represents a contractug]
right to receive money or a contractual obligation to pay money on demand or on
fixed or determinable dates that is already included as an asset or liability in the
creditor’s or debtor’s balance sheet at the time of the restructuring. (ASC
310-40-15-4A)

A restructuring is considered a troubled debt restructuring (TDR) if the
creditor for economic or legal reasons related to the debtor’s financial difficulties
grants a concession to the debtor that it would not otherwise consider. A
concession is usually granted by the creditor in an attempt to protect as much of
its investment as possible. (ASC 310-40-15-5)

Generally, a debtor that can obtain funds from sources other than the
existing creditor at market interest rates at or near those rates for non-trouble 4
debt is not involved in a TDR. A TDR may include, but is not limited t&, the
following:

¢ Transfers from the debtor to the creditor of receivables from: third parties,
real estate, or other assets to satisfy fully or partially a debt

® Issuance or other granting of an equity interest to the.creditor by the
debtor to satisfy fully or partially a debt unless-tie equity interest is
granted pursuant to existing terms for converting the debt into an equity
interest.

® Modification of terms of a debt, such as:

— Reduction of the stated interest rate for the remaining original life of
the debt.

— Extension of the maturity date or dates of a stated interest rate lower
than the current market rate for new debt with similar risk.

— Reduction of the face amount or maturity amount of the debt as stated
in the instrument or other agreement.

— Reduction of accrued interest. (ASC 310-40-15-9)

In determining whether a restructuring is a TDR, the creditor must separately
conclude that both of the following exists:

® The restructuring constitutes a concession.

¢ The debtor is experiencing financial difficulty.
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Granting a Concession

The following additional guidance is provided to assist creditors in determining
whether it has granted a concession. If the debtor does not otherwise have access
to funds at a below market rate or debt with similar risk characteristics as the
restructuring debt, the restructuring is considered to be at a below-market rate
and may indicate that the creditor has granted a concession. In that circumstance,
the creditor should consider all aspects of the restructuring to determine if it has
made a concession. (ASC 310-40-15-15)

A temporary or permanent increase in the contractual interest rate as a result
of a restructuring does not preclude the restructuring from being considered a
concession because the new contractual interest rate on the restructured may still
be below the market interest rate for new debt with similar risk characteristics. In
this situation, the creditor should consider all aspects of the restructuring to
determine whether a concession has been granted. (ASC 310-40-15-16)

A restructuring that results in an insignificant delay in payment is not
considered a concession. The creditor should consider various factors in assess-
ing whetiier a restructuring that results in a delay in payment is insignificant.
(ASC310-40-15-17)

Assessing Financial Difficulty
if a decision is made that the creditor has made a concession, a separate

assessment must be made whether the debtor is experiencing financial difficul-
ties to determine whether the restructuring constitutes a TDR.

The following should be considered in making this judgment:
¢ The debtor is currently in payment default on any if its debt.

* The probability that the debtor will be in payment default on any of its
debt in the foreseeable future without the modification.

® The debtor has declared or is in the process of declaring bankruptcy.

e There is substantial doubt as to whether the debtor will continue to be a
going concerr.

* The debtor has securities that have been delisted, are in the process of
being delisted, or are under threat of being delisted from an exchange.

® On the basis of estimates and projections that only encompass the debtor’s
current capabilities, the creditor forecasts that the debtor’s entity-specific
cash flows will be insufficient to service any of its debt in accordance with
the contractual terms of the existing agreement for the foreseeable future.

® Without the current modification, the debtor cannot obtain funds from
sources other than the existing creditors at an effective interest rate equal
to the market rate for similar debt for a non-troubled debtor. (ASC
310-40-15-20)

Further guidance to assist the creditor in assessing whether a debtor is experienc-
ing financial difficulties include the following. Payment default is not a necessary
criterion for determining that a debtor is having financial difficulties. A creditor
should evaluate whether it is probable that the debtor will be in payment default

on any of its debt in the foreseeable future without the current modification in its
debt.
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Transfer of Asset(s)

When the creditor receives assets as full settlement of a receivable, they ae
accounted for at their fair value at the time of the restructuring. The fair value of
the receivable satisfied can be used if it is more clearly determinable than the faiy
value of the asset or equity acquired. In partial payments the creditor must uge
the fair value of the asset or equity received (ASC 310-40-35-6).

The excess of the recorded receivable over the fair value of the assets
received (less cost to sell if a long-lived asset is received) is recognized as a logg
(ASC 310-40-40-3). The creditor accounts for these assets as if they were acquiregd
for cash (ASC 310-40-40-5).

lllustration of Transfer of Assets

A debtor owes $20,000, including accrued interest. The creditor accepts land
valued at $17,000 and carried on the debtor's books at its $12,000 cost, in full
payment,

Under U.S. GAAP, the debtor recognizes two gains: $5,000 ($17,000 —
$12,000) on the transfer of the assets, and $3,000 ($20,000 — $17,000) on the
extinguishment of debt.

The creditor recognizes a loss of $3,000 ($20,000 — $17,000).

Transfer of Equity Interest

The creditor records the receipt of an equity interest as any other assct by
recording the investment at its fair value and recognizing a loss equal to the
difference between the fair value of the equity interest and the.arnount of the
receivable (ASC 310-40-40-3).

lllustration of Transfer of Equity Interest

A debtor grants an equity interest valued at $10,000, consisting of 500 shares of
$15 par value stock, to retire a payable of $12,000. Given these facts, the debtor
records the issuance of the stock at $10,000 ($7,500 par value and $2,500
additional paid-in capital) and a gain on the exiinguishment of debt of $2,000
($12,000 — $10,000). The creditor records an investment asset of $10,000 and
an ordinary loss of $2,000 ($12,000 — $10,000) on the TDR.

PRACTICE POINTER: Determining the fair value of an equity interest of a
debtor company involved in a troubled debt restructuring may be difficult. In
many cases, the company’s stock will not be publicly traded, and there may be
no recent stock transactions that would be helpful. Even if a recent market price
were available, consider whether that price reflects the financially troubled status
of the company that exists at the time the troubled debt restructuring takes place.
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Madification of Terms

Jrecitor in a TDR involving a modification of terms accounts_ for the restruc-
tured loan at the present value of expected future cash flows dlsFOUnted at tl’fe
Joan's contractual interest rate, the loan’s observable market price, or the fair
value of collateral if the loan is collateral-dependent.

——

PRACTICE NOTE: A loan is impaired if it is probable that a creditor will be
unable to collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan
agreement. A loan whose terms are modified in a TDR will havg already bee_n
identified as impaired. A loan is considered collateral-dependent if repayment is
expected to be provided solely by the underlying collateral.

e
"

Illustration of Modification of Terms

A debtoriias a loan to a creditor, details of which are as follows:

Principal $10,000
Accrued interest 500

Tota $10.500

They agree on a restructuring in which the total future cash payments, both
principal and interest, are $8,000. The present value of these payments is
$7,500.

Under U.S. GAAP, the debtor recognizes a gain of $2,500 ($10,500 —
$8,000) at the time of the restructuring, and all future payments are specified as
principal payments. Under U.S. GAAP, the creditor recognizes a loss of $3,000
($10,500 — $7,500).

Combination of Types

When a restructuring involves combinations of asset or equity transfers and
modification of terms, the creditor reduces the recorded investment by the fair
value of assets received less cost to sell, including an equity interest in the debtor.
Thereafter, the creditor accounts for the TDR in accordance with ASC 310 (ASC
310-40-35-7).

Related Issues

Legal fees and other direct costs resulting from a TDR are expensed by the
creditor when incurred (ASC 310-40-25-1).

A receivable obtained by a creditor from the sale of assets previously
obtained in a TDR is accounted for in accordance with ASC 835-30 (Interest—
Imputation of Interest), regardless of whether the assets were obtained in satis-
faction of a receivable to which ASC 835-30 was not intended to apply (ASC
310-40-40-8).

For creditors, a troubled debt restructuring may involve substituting debt of
another business enterprise, individual, or governmental unit for that of a
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troubled debtor. That kind of restructuring should be accounted for according ¢,
its substance (ASC 310-40-25-2).

CREDITOR DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS FOR TROUBLED DEBT
RESTRUCTURINGS

The creditor shall disclose the following regarding troubled debt restructurings
(ASC 310-40-50-1):

L. As of the date of each statement of financial position presented, the total
recorded investment in the impaired loans at the end of each period, ag
well as (4) the amount of the recorded investment for which there ig a
related allowance for credit losses, and the amount of that allowance:

and (b) the amount of the recorded investment for which there is o
related allowance for credit losses

2. The creditor’s policy for recognizing interest income on impaired loang,
including how cash receipts are recorded

3. For each period for which results of operations are presented, the
average recorded investment in the impaired loans during each periad;
the related amount of interest income recognized during the time within
that period that the loans were impaired; and, if practicable, the amount
of interest income recognized (cash-basis method of accounting) during
the time within that period that the loans were impaired

4. Amount(s) of any commitment(s) to lend additional funds to any deb*.
who is a party to a restructuring

OTHER CLASSIFICATION AND DISCLOSURE ISSUES

ASC 230-10-45-11 states that cash flows from purchases, sales, ana maturities of
available-for-sale debt securities are classified as cash flows om investment
activities and reported gross in the statement of cash flows: A5C 230-10-45-21
states that some loans are similar to debt securities in a i#ading account in that

they are originated or purchased specifically for resale and are held for short
periods of time. (ASC 310-10-45-11)

ASC 825-10-50 provides guidance on the required disclosure of fair value of
certain assets and liabilities. ASC 825-10-50 explains that, for trade receivables

and payables, no disclosure is required if the trade receivable or payable is due in
one year or less. (ASC 310-10-50-26)

PART II: INTERPRETIVE GUIDANCE

ASC 310-10: OVERALL

IMPORTANT NOTICE: See the discussion of the Future Impact of ASU
2016-13: Financial Instruments—Credit Losses, in Part | above.
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C 310-10-05-9; 15-5; 25-15 through 25-30; 35-55 through 35-61; 40-3 ?hrough
2155. 45-15; ASC 360-10-35-3, 35-9 Purpose and Scope of AcSEC Practice

Bulletins and Procedures for Their Issuance

BACKGROUND

The AICPA issued Practice Bulletins to disseminate the views of the A¥CPA
Accounting Standards Executive Committee (AcStEC) (pow know_n as the Finan-

ial Reporting Executive Committee) on narrow financial accounting and .report-
. issues. AcSEC was a senior technical body of the AICPA authorized to
mgresent the AICPA on matters that addressed accounting and financial report-
ig unique to specific industries. Practice Bulletins addre.ssed issues that were
not addressed and are not expected to be addressed by either the FASB or the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

ACCOUNTING GUIDANCE

Before 1987, when ACSEC began to issue Practice Bu]letin_s, sjmi_lar guidance was
Provided :n “IJotices to Practitioners,” which were pubhghf&d in e1the_r The CPA
Letter ot the Journal of Accountancy. Unlike Notices to Practitioners, Whlcll'l are not
numbered for retrievability, Practice Bulletins are numbered and demgned .to
caovey information that will enhance the quality and comparability of financial
sratements.

Drafts of proposed Practice Bulletins, which have been discustsed’ at AcSEC
open meetings, are available to the public as part of the meeting’s agenda.
However, Practice Bulletins have not been exposed for public comment, and
their issuance is not subject to public hearings.

A Practice Bulletin is issued if both of the following conditions are met: (2)
two-thirds or more of AcSEC’s members vote to issue the proposed _Buuetin, and
(b) after reviewing the proposed Bulletin, the FASB and GASB indicate that
neither plans to address the particular issue.

Most of the Notices to Practitioners that preceded the issuance of Practice
Bulletins have been superseded. Three Notices to Practitioners continue to be in
effect, however, and are discussed in the appendix to PB-1, “Purpose and Scope
of AcSEC Practice Bulletins and Procedures for Their Issuance.” The following is
a brief discussion of the three Notices to Practitioners that were not superseded.

ACRS Lives and U.S. GAAP

In most cases, the number of years specified by the ACRS for recovery deduc-
tions will not bear any reasonable resemblance to the asset’s usefllal llife. In these
cases, ACRS recovery deductions cannot be used as the deprec1at19n expense
amount for financial reporting purposes. Rather, depreciation for financial re-
porting purposes should be based on the asset’s useful life.

Accounting by Colleges and Universities for Compensated Absences

Note: The following discussion pertains solely to private (nonpublic) colleges and
universities.

When ASC 710, Compensation—General, and ASC 420, Exit or Dispogal Cost 'Obliga—
tions were issued, there was some discussion as to whether the guidance in ASC

$
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710 would apply to colleges and universities. The FASB decided not to exe
colleges and universities from the provisions of that standard. A Notic

mpt

e 1o
Practitioners was issued to assist colleges and universities in applying that

guidance. The essential conclusions of the Notice were as follows:

® In recognizing the liability, and the associated charge, for compensated
absences in the current and prior years, the unrestricted current fund ig to
be used (use of the plant fund is specifically prohibited).

In some cases, the liability for compensated absences might be recover.
able from future state and federal grants and contracts for funded re.
search. A receivable, and the associated revenue, can be recognized tg
offset a portion of the liability only in limited situations. More specifically,
a receivable can be recognized only if it meets the definition of an assef in
Statement of Financial Accounting Concepts No. 6 (Elements of Financia]
Statements of Business Enterprises). In evaluating the receivable, the
college or university should consider the measurability and collectibility
of the receivable and the institution’s legal right to it.

® The reduction in the unrestricted current fund balance caused by recog-
nizing the liability for compensated absences may be reduced by in-
terfund transfers. These interfund transfers may be recognized only if ()
unrestricted assets are available for permanent transfer and (b) payment

{or other settlement) to the unrestricted current fund is expected within a
reasonable period.

ADC Arrangements

This Notice to Practitioners addresses the funding provided by financial iftitu-
tions for real estate acquisition, development, and construction (ADC):1a some
cases, financial institutions enter into ADC agreements where the inshitution has
essentially the same risks and rewards as an investor or a joint venture partici-

pant. In these cases, treating the ADC funding as a loaw would not be
appropriate.

The notice applies only to ADC arrangements in which'a financial institution
is expected to receive some or all of the residual profit. Expected residual profit is
the amount of funds the lender is expected to receive—whether these funds are
referred to as interest, as fees, or as an equity kicker—above a customary amount
of interest and fees normally received for providing comparable financing.

The profit participation between the lender and the developer is not always
part of the mortgage loan agreement. Therefore, the auditor should be cognizant
that such side agreements may exist and should design the audit to detect such
profit participation agreements between the lender and the developer.

PRACTICE POINTER: A side agreement may exist to provide the lender
with a profit participation in ADC loans. This side agreemant may not be referred
to in the mortgage agreement between the lender and the developer. The auditor
should specifically ask the lender to confirm whether it is party to a profit
participation agreement on a particular loan. '
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A number of characteristics, in addition to the sharing of the expected
dual profit, indicate that the ADC arrangement is more akin to an investment

5l - .
r‘i a joint venture than to a loan. These characteristics are as follows:
0

e The financial institution provides all, or substantially all, of the funds
necessary to acquire, develop, and construct the project. The developer
has title but little or no equity investment in the project.

e The financial institution rolls into the loan any commitment and/or
origination fees.

e The financial institution adds to the loan balance all, or substantially all,
interest and fees during the term of the loan.

e The financial institution’s only security for the loan is the ADC project.
There is no recourse to other assets of the borrower. Also, the borrower
does not guarantee the debt.

s The financial institution recovers its investment in one of three ways: (a)
the iroject is completed and sold to an independent third party, (.b) thg
borrower obtains refinancing from another source, or (c) the project is
completed and placed in service, and cash flows are sufficient to fund the
repayment of principal and interest.

e Foreclosure during the development period due to delinquency is un-
likely, because the borrower is not required to make any payments during
this period.

In some cases, even though a lender is expected to participate in the residual
profit from the project, the facts and circumstances of the borrowing arrangement
are consistent with a loan. The following characteristics of an ADC arrangement
are consistent with a loan:

e The lender’s participation in the expected residual profit is less than 50%.

e The borrower has a substantial equity investment in the project, not
funded by the lender. This equity investment can be either in the form of
cash or in the form of the contribution of land to the project.

e Either (1) the lender has recourse to other substantial, tangible assets of
the borrower, which have not already been pledged under other loans, or
(b) the borrower has secured an irrevocable letter of credit from a
creditworthy, independent third party for substantially all of the loan
balance and for the entire term of the loan.

® A take-out commitment for the entire amount of the loan has been
secured from a creditworthy, independent third party. If the take-out
commitment is conditional, the conditions should be reasonable and their
attainment should be probable.

Some ADC loans contain personal guarantees from the borrower or from a
third party, but such guarantees are rarely sufficient to support classifying an
ADC arrangement as a loan.

In evaluating the substance of a personal guarantee, the following factors
should be considered: (1) the ability of the guarantor to perform‘ undellr the
guarantee, (2) the practicality of enforcing the guarantee in the applicable juris-
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diction, and (3) a demonstrated intent on the part of the lender to enforce the
guarantee. Factors that might indicate the ability to perform under the Buaranteg
include placing liquid assets in escrow, pledging marketable securities, an,

obtaining irrevocable letters of credit from a creditworthy, independent thirg

party.

In the absence of the support discussed above for a guarantee, a guarantop’s
financial statements should be evaluated. In evaluating a guarantor’s finangig]
statements, an auditor should consider both the guarantor’s liquidity and peg
worth. A guarantee has little substance if it is supported only by assets alreagd,

pledged as security for other debt. Also, guarantees made by a guarantor g
other projects should be considered.

If a lender expects to receive more than 50% of the residual profit from 3
project, the lender should account for the income or loss from the arrangement a5
a real estate investment. The guidance in ASC 970, Real Estate-General, ASC 360,

Property Plant and Equipment, and ASC 976, Real Estate-Retail Land should be
followed.

If a lender expects to receive less than 50% of the residual profit from a
project, an ADC arrangement should be accounted for as a loan or as a joint
venture, depending on the applicable circumstances. If an ADC arrangement ig
classified as a loan, interest and fees accounted for as a receivable may be
recognized as income if they are recoverable. In assessing the recoverability of
lpan amounts and accrued interest, the guidance in both ASC 974, Real Estate
Real Estate Investment Trusts, and the guidance in ASC 942 (Audit and Accou +
ing Guide, Banks and Savings Institutions) might be useful. If an ADC arrar.ge-
ment is classified as a joint venture, the primary accounting guidance taay be
found in ASC 970 and in ASC 835-20, Interest-Capitalization.

For balance sheet reporting purposes, ADC arrangements classified as in-
vestments in real estate or as joint ventures should be combired ‘and reported
separately from ADC arrangements accounted for as loans.

In some cases, a lender’s share of the expected residual profit is sold before a
project is completed. The applicable accounting in those cases hinges on whether
the ADC arrangement was treated as a loan, as an investment in real estate, or as
a joint venture. If an ADC arrangement was treated as a loan, proceeds received
from a sale of the expected residual profit should be recognized as additional
interest income over the remaining term of the loan. If an ADC arrangement was
treated as a real estate investment or a joint venture, any gain to be recognized

upon sale of the expected residual profit is determined based on the guidance
ASC 976.

The accounting treatment of an ADC project should be periodically reas-
sessed. For example, an ADC arrangement originally classified as an investment
Or as a joint venture might subsequently be classified as a loan if a lender is not
expected to receive more than 50% of the residual profit and if the risk to the
lender has decreased significantly. It is important to note that a change in
accounting for an ADC arrangement depends on a change in the facts that were
relied upon when the ADC arrangement was initially classified. The absence of,
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ed participation in, a residual profit is not §ufficier_1t to change the
redu?—jon of an ADC atrangement. In addition, it is possible for an ADC
ment initially classified as a loan to be recla_stsiﬁed as a real estate
e t or a joint venture. A lender may take on additional risks and re?varlds
invesmlenhj by releasing collateral to support a guarantee and by increasing its
e I(D)f profit participation. An improvement in a project’s economic
ercentigiloes not justify a change in how an ADC arrangement is categorized.
msﬂigse in classification is expected to be rare and should be supported by
?d.:quate documentation.

Finally, regardless of the accounting tre-a.trnent fqr an ADC arrangement, it 1;
rv to continually assess the collectibility of prn}apal, accrued interest, an
necesﬂsg ADC financing often entails a heightened risk of related-party transac-
f;fz;;_ An ;mditor needs to design the audit accordingly.

gra ™
categoriza

-10-05-5, 05-7; 25-3, 25-6, 25-8; 25-13; 30-7; 35-41 through 35-43, 35-46
iifuz‘?;;%, 45-2, through 45-3; 50-2 through 50-11; ASC 310-20-15-3; Sg:sl,c
ASC 460-10-55-3; 45-1; ASC 460-605-25-7; ASC 825-10-35-1 through 35.- ,SC
835-30-15-1, ASC 860-20-50-5; ASC 860-50-15-3; ASC 860-50-40-2, 40-6; A -
860-5+2-15-2 through 15-3; ASC 942-210-45-1 through 45-2; ASC 942-305-05-2; N
Ji5.1-50-1; ASC 942-310-15-2; ASC 942-320-50-4; ASC 942-325-25-1 througl‘f 25-1,
{E-l.through 35-4; ASC 942-360-45-2; ASC 942-405-25-1 through 25-4;.35;1(,:45-
ihrough 45-4; 50-1; ASC 942-470-45-1 through 45-2; 50-2 through 50-3; A <L
942-505-50-1H through 50-7; ASC 942-825-50-1 through 59-2; ASC 944-3% -d 0-1;
ASC 948-10-15-3; 50-2 through 50-5 Accounting by Fertaln Entlfl(ES .(I.nc uding
Entities with Trade Receivables) That Lend to or Finance the Activities of
Others
BACKGROUND

This guidance was issued to reduce the variability among ﬁ_‘fla_'[l'lcial institu’gons
(including entities with trade receivables) in accounting for glmﬂar t}];ansaf'hips.
It provides accounting guidance for entities that lend to or finance the ac 1dvl1 1135
of other parties, including entities that simply extend normal trade cre 1‘trh ]
customers (i.e., accounts receivable). The guidanFe does not gpply to entities that
carry loans and trade receivables at fair value, with changes in fair value ﬂf)wmg
through the current period’s income statement. Exa.rrltples of such entities 1?—
clude: investment companies, broker-dealers in securities, and employee benefit
plans.

PRACTICE NOTE: This guidance applies to all entities that Ietjd .to or
finance the activities of their customers or other parties, even if an entity |§_not
considered to be a finance company. Therefore, the guidance on tht_a recoghition,
measurement, and disclosure of loans and trade receivables, cr.edlt Ic.)sses,l iand
other items, applies to manufacturers, retailers, and other r}on-flnanclal entities.
Also, more specific guidance is provided for finance companies.
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PART I: GENERAL GUIDANCE

ASC 480-10: OVERALL

OVERVIEW

ASC 480 more clearly defines the distinction between liabilities and equity, Ty,
approach taken is to specifically define liabilities and require that al] o
financial instruments be classified as equity in the balance sheet. The FASR Stateg
that ASC 480 is generally consistent with its definitions of the various elemenyg
of the statement of financial position (balance sheet), income statement, gng
statement of cash flows.

ASC 480 establishes standards for issuer
characteristics of both liabilities and equity
measurement of those instruments. It requires the issuer to classify a financia]
instrument as a liability, or asset in some cases, which was previously classifieg
as equity. The classification standards are generally consistent with the definition

of liabilities in FASB Concepts Statement No. 6 and with the FASB’s proposal tg
revise that definition to encompass certain oblig

or must settle by issuing its own equity shares.

s of financial instruments with
related to the classification and

ations that a reporting entity can

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Distinction between Liabilities and Equity

ASC 480 requires an issuer to classify the following instruments as Labilities, or
assets in certain circumstances:

® A financial instrument issued in the form of shares that is mandatorily
redeemable in that it embodies an unconditional nk Ligation that requires
the issuer to redeem the shares by transferring’the ‘entity’s assets at a
specified or determinable date(s) or upon an evert that is certain to oceur,

A financial instrument other than an outstanding share that, at its incep-
tion, embodies an obligation to repurchase the issuer’s equity shares, or is
indexed to such an obligation, and that requires or may require the issuer
to settle the obligation by transferring assets (ASC 480-10-25-8)

A financial instrument other than an outstanding share that embodies an
unconditional obligation that the issuer must or may settle by issuing a
variable number of equity shares if, at inception, the monetary value of

the obligation is based solely or predominantly on any of the following
(ASC 480-10-25-14):

— A lixed monetary amount known at inception (e.g., a payable to be
settled with a variable number of the issuer’s equity shares).

— Variations in something other than the fair value of the issuer’s equity
shares (e.g., a financial instrument indexed to the S&P 500 and settle-
able with a variable number of the issuer’s equity shares)

ASC 480—Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity 36,003

— Variables inversely related to changes in the fair value of the issuer’s
equity shares (e.g., a written put option that could be net share
settled).

ASC 480 applies to issuers’ classification and measurement of freesta‘nding
. cial instruments, including those that comprise more than one ophon or
- d contract. It does not apply to features that are embedded in a f_n}anc.nal
4 trjIrnent that is not a derivative in its entirety. In applying the cl_asmﬁcahon
;,mvisions of ASC 480, nonsubstantive or minimal features are to be disregarded.

Required Disclosures

ers of financial instruments are required to disclose the nature gnd terms of
.Essuﬁnancial instruments and the rights and obligations embodied in those
'-theu-uments. That disclosure shall include information about any settlement
.ﬂfematives in the contract and identify the entity that controls the settlement
alternatives (4SC 480-10-50-1).

For ail putstanding financial instruments within the scope of ASC 4.80, and
the settlomient alternative(s), the following information is required to be disclosed
b iscuers (ASC 480-10-50-2):

o The amount that would be paid, or the number of shares that W(?l:.lld l?e
issued and their fair value, determined under the conditions specified in
the contract if the settlement were to occur at the reporting date.

e How changes in the fair value of the issuer’s equity shares would affect
those settlement amounts.

» The maximum amount that the issuer could be required to pay to redeem
the instrument by physical settlement, if applicable.

» The maximum number of shares that could be required to be issued, if
applicable.

® That a contract does not limit the amount that the issuer coqld be rfequireld
to pay or the number of shares that the issuer could be required to issue, if
applicable.

¢ For a forward contract or an option indexed to the issuer’s.equit}’f shares,
the forward price or option strike price, the number of the issuer’s shares
to which the contract is indexed, and the settlement date(s) of the
contract.

Mandatorily Redeemable Financial Instruments—Applicability and
Implementation

The classification, measurement, and disclosure guidance in subtopic ASC 480-10
does not apply to mandatorily redeemable f-jnanc:ial 'mfst‘ruments that meet botz
of the following: (1) they are issued by nonpublic entities that are not registere
with the SEC, and (2) they are mandatorily redeemable but not on fixed dates for
fixed amounts, or if the amount due is not tied to an interest rate index, currency
index, or other external index (ASC 480-10-15-7A).

In addition, ASC 480’s guidance does not apply to mar_Lc.latorily rc—‘:‘defemable
foncontrol- ling interests if the interest would not be classified as a liability by
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through 45-9, 50-1, 55-1 through 55-33, 55-35 through 55-38; ASC 460-10.60_11
(formerly SOP 93-6), or related guidance. However, according to ASC
480-10-15-8, the guidance in ASC 480-10-05-1 through 05-6, 10-1, 15-3 throy, b
15-5, 15-7 through 15-8, 25-1 through 25-2. 25-4 through 25-15, 30-1 through 305
30-7, 356-1, 35-3 through 35-5, 45-1 through 45-4, 50-1 through 50-4, 55-1 thmugl.;
55-12, 55-14 through 55-28, 55-34 through 55-41, 55-64; ASC 835-10-60-13. But
other applicable guidance under Subtopic 718-40 continues to apply to ESQp

shares that are mandatorily redeemable or freestanding under agreementg to
repurchase shares.

ACCOUNTING GUIDANCE

Question: Does the guidance in Subtopic 480-10 apply to mandatorily redeem-
able ESOP shares or freestanding agreements to repurchase ESOP shares?

Answer: No. The guidance in Subtopic 480-10 does not apply to mandatorily
redeemable ESOP shares or freestanding agreements to repurchase those shares,
that are accounted for under the guidance in Topic 718-40 until they are re.
deemed or under the guidance in Subtopic 505-50. Nevertheless, freestanding
financial instruments issued under a share-based compensation arrangement that
are no longer subject to the guidance in Topic 718 or Subtopic 505-50, would be
accounted for under the guidance in Subtopic 480-10, for example, when g
mandatorily redeemable share is issued as a result of an employee’s exercise of
an employee share option.

ASC 480-10-25-9, 25-13, 55-33 Issuer’s Accounting under FASB Statement N,
150 for Freestanding Warrants and Other Similar Instruments on Shares That
Are Redeemable

BACKGROUND

This guidance applies to freestanding financial instruments that are not outstand-
ing shares, such as warrants. They are issued with an obligetion to repurchase
the issuer’s equity shares and require or may require settiemeént by a transfer of
assets. Such financial instruments, therefore, are accounted for as liabilities under
the guidance in ASC 480-10-259 through 25-12. In ASC 480-10-55-29 through
55-32, 40-42 through 40-52, there is an example of a warrant that may be put to

the issuer at a fixed price immediately after the warrant has been exercised.
Constituents have raised the following question.

QUESTION

Does the timing of the redemption feature or the redemption price, which may be
at fair value or a fixed amount, affect whether the guidance in ASC 480-10-25-9

through 25-12 should be applied to warrants for shares that can be put to the
issuer?

ACCOUNTING GUIDANCE

Because freestanding warrants and other similar instruments on shares that are
puttable or mandatorily redeemable include obligations to transfer assets, they
should be accounted for as liabilities (under the guidance in ASC 480-10-25-9
through 25-12) regardless of when they are redeemed or their redemption price.
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The phrase “requires or may require” is used in ASC 48.0—10-25'-9_ through

12 to refer to financial instruments under which an issuer is con'dltmnally or

unconditionally obligated to transfer assets. For puttable sha_res, the issuer would

be conditionally obligated to transfer assets if the warrant is exercised and the

shares are put to the issuer. In the case of mandatorily rgdeemable shares, _the

igsuer would be conditionally obligated to transfer assets if the holder exercises
the warrant. In both cases, the warrant should be accounted for as a liability.

ASC 480-10-45-2A through 45-2B Accounting for Mandatorily Rec.leemable
ghares Requiring Redemption by Payment of an Amount That Differs frgm
the Book Value of Those Shares, under FASB Statement No. 150, Accounting

for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of both Liabilities and

Equity

Question: Some companies have outstanding shares, all of which are subject to
mandatory redemption on the occurrence of events that are certain to occur.
Assume that-ori the date of adoption, the redemption price of the shares is more
than their book value. On the date of adoption, the company Would recognize a
Jiability fo: the redemption price of the shares that are sub]ect'to mandE}tory
redeinption, reclassifying the amounts previously classified as equity. Any differ-
f o oetween the redemption price on the date of adoption and the_amounts
peviously recognized in equity is reported in income as a cumulative effect
transition adjustment loss. The redemption price may be a f}xed amount or may
vary based on specified conditions. How should the cumulative transition ac_i]ust—
ment and subsequent adjustment to reflect changes in the redemption price of
the shares be reported if they exceed the company’s equity balance?

Answer: The cumulative adjustment amount and any subsequent adjustments to
it should be reported as an excess of liabilities over assets (i.e., as a deficit). If the
redemption price of the mandatorily redeemable shares is less than the book
value of those shares, the excess of that book value over the liability reported for
the mandatorily redeemable shares should be reported as an excess of assets over
ligbility (i.e., as equity).

For example, assume that Company X adopts the guidance in ASC 480 when
both the fair value and redemption value of the mandatorily redeemable shares
is $20 million and the book value of those shares is $15 million of which $10
million is paid-in capital. On the date that guidance is adopted, the company
would recognize a liability of $20 million by transferring $15 mil]i‘.)n. from equity
and recognizing a cumulative transition adjustment loss of $5 million. Assume
further that net income attributable to the mandatorily redeemable share is $1
million for the year and the fair value of the shares at the end of the year is $21.2
million. No cash dividends are paid. The following is the presentation in the
statement of financial position at the end of the year, assuming assets of $26
million and other liabilities of $10 million (all numbers in millions):

Assets $26,000
Liabilities other than shares $10,000
Shares subject to mandatory redemption 21,200
Total liabilities $31,200
Excess of liabilities over assets (5,200)
Total $26,000
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ASC 480-10-545-5; S99-4 Sponsor’s Balance Sheet Classification of Capita]
Stock with a Put Option Held by an Employee Stock Ownership Plan

BACKGROUND

Federal income tax regulations require employer securities held by an ESQp
have a put option, referred to as a liquidity put, allowing the employee tﬂ.
demand redemption if the securities are not readily marketable. The em i to
may have the option to satisfy the demand for redemption with cash, mark}:atalyl?
securities, or both. Under the provisions of some ESOPs, the ESOP may Subsﬁe

tute for the employer in redeeming the employees’ shares.

Companies may also issue to their ESOPs convertible preferred stock which
is convertible into the company’s common stock. Such stock is not plub]jd
traded and therefore has a put option. The holder generally has the option of
when to convert the stock, but under the terms of some convertible stock the
issuer/employer is permitted to convert the shares. In some cases, the stock js
converted or put to the employer when there is a takeover attempt or a merger
The convertible stock may have the following features: :

¢ It has a “floor put” feature that guarantees the participant a minimum
value, and is exercised if the convertible is “out of the money.” The
employer may have the option of redeeming the stock for cash, giving th
participant common stock that would be issuable on conversion n.‘lu;
additional shares, or giving the participant common stock that would be
issuable on conversion plus cash. The participant may have the uption of
receiving cash, common shares, or a combination of both.

® After a certain period of time, the employer may have, the option to call
the stock at a stipulated price. The ESOP can hold callable stock if it
provides for a reasonable period of time after calliag ior the stock to be
converted to common shares instead of cash, if paticipants so desire.

¢ The convertible stock can be held only by the ESOP and is automatically
converted to common stock when distributed to participants leaving the
plan. However, a floor put feature enables participants to require the
trustee to put the convertible stock even before it has been distributed to
participants if the convertible stock is “out of the money.”

SEC Staff Accounting Series Release (ASR) 268 (Presentation in Financial
Statements of “Redeemable Preferred Stocks”) requires public companies to
classify mandatorily redeemable preferred stock or stock whose redemption is
outside the issuer’s control outside of stockholders’ equity.

In a leveraged ESOP, the employer records the ESOP’s debt as a liability. The
liability is offset by a contra-equity account referred to as “unearned ESOP
shares,” which is recorded as a debit in equity. (Before the issuance of ASC
718-40 (Employers’ Accounting for Employee Stock Ownership Plans), such an
account was referred to as loan to ESOP or deferred compensation.) When the
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employer issues stock ‘Fo the ESOP, this contra-equity account is credited and
here is 10 effect on equity.
AcCOUNTING ISSUES
e Under what circumstances should all or a portion of convertible preferred
stock with put options held by an ESOP be classified outside of equity?

o If convertible preferred stock with put options issued to a leveraged ESOP
is classified outside of stockholders’ equity, should the contra-equity
account, unearned ESOP shares, be classified in the same manner?

ACCOUNTING GUIDANCE

o Publicly held companies should classify convertible preferred stock is-
sued to ESOPs in accordance with the provisions of ASR-268, which
requires that mandatorily redeemable preferred stock be classified as a
separate item between liabilities and equity, commonly referred to as the
“mezzanine.”

o A proportional amount of the contra-equity account in the employer’s
halziice sheet should be similarly classified.

Tor example, if $7,500,000 of $10,000,000 of preferred stock issued to an
ESOP is convertible and therefore is classified outside of stockholders’
equity, 75% of the balance of the contra-equity account would be classi-
fied in the same manner. Thus, if the remaining ESOP debt is $8,000,000,
75% (or $6,000,000) of the contra-equity account, unearned ESOP shares,
would be classified outside of stockholders’ equity.

PRACTICE POINTER: Under the guidance in ASC 460-10-55-5, a put
option issued by an ESOP may be a guarantee. If a put is a guarantee that is not
accounted for under the provisions of ASC 815-10-15, the ESOP sponsor’s
obligations under that guarantee would be reported as a liability under U.S.
GAAP; the sponsor would be required to recognize a liability for the fair value of
the put at its inception and provide the disclosures specified in ASC 460. The
requirement in ASC 460 that a put be recognized as a liability at its inception and
the requirement to disclose additional information change the sponsor’s reporting
and, therefore, partially nullify the guidance above.

ASC 480-10 provides guidance to issuers on the classification and mea-
surement of financial instruments with characteristics of both liabilities and
equity, except for mandatorily redeemable financial instruments of nonpublic
entities. Financial instruments under the scope of ASC 480-10 should be classi-
fied as liabilities or, in some cases, as assets. Because ESOP shares with
embedded repurchase feaiures or freestanding instruments to repurchase ESOP
shares are covered under the guidance in ASC 718-40 (Employers’ Accounting
for Employee Stock Ownership Plans) and related guidance, the guidance in
ASC 480-10 does not apply to those shares. However, the requirement in the
SEC’s ASR-268 that ESOP shares be reported in temporary equity continues to

apply.
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Step 2: Assess whether the monetary value of any freestanding COMponents

are collectively predominant over the collective monetary value of
other component obligations. If so, the entire financial instrument iEln
accounted for under the guidance in ASC 480-10-25-14. If not thes
financial instrument is not included under the scope of ASC 45;0-10

For example, Company X issues a puttable warrant to Investor Y, T,
warrant allows Investor Y to purchase one equity share at a strike price of $1§he
a specified date. The put feature allows Investor Y to put the warrant back g
Company X on that date at $2, and can be settled in fractional shares. If the Shato
price on the settlement date exceeds $12, Investor Y would be expected k
exercise the warrant and obligate Company X to issue a fixed number of gh to.
in exchange for a fixed amount of cash. The monetary value of the shares varl"es'
directly with changes in the share price above $12. If the share price is equal tolesi
less than $12, Investor Y would most likely put the warrant back to Compan ;)(I
obligating it to issue a variable number of shares with a fixed monetary Vzlu!
(known at inception) of $2. Thus, at inception, the number of shares that the
puttable warrant obligates Company X to issue can vary, and the financiaei
instrument must be examined as described previously. The facts and circum.
stances are used to make a judgment whether the monetary value of the obliga-
tion to issue a number of shares that varies is predominantly based on a fixed
monetary amount that is known at inception and, if so, it is a liability under the
guidance in ASC 480-10-25-14.

In the previous example, if Company X’s share price is well below the $:0
exercise price of the warrant at inception, the warrant has a short life, ond
Company X’s stock is determined to have low volatility, the circumstances
would suggest that the monetary value of the obligation to issue sharcs is based
predominantly on a fixed monetary amount known at inception an- tne instru-
ment should be classified as a liability.

ASC 480:10-55-53 through 55-61; ASC 460-10-60-6 Majorit;: Oviner’s
Acc?unfmg for a Transaction in the Shares of a Consolidated Subsidiary and a
Derivative Indexed to the Noncontrolling Interest in That Subsidiary

PRACTICE NOTE: The guidance in ASC 810-10-65-1, which was issued in
December 2007, establishes accounting and reporting standards for a noncon-
trolling interest in a subsidiary and changes the term minority interest to noncon-
trolling inferest. It does not affect the guidance in this Issue.

BACKGROUND

This Issue addresses the accounting for a scenario in which a parent company
has a controlling interest in 80% of a subsidiary’s equity shares and an unrelated
entity has a noncontrolling interest in 20% of the equity shares. At acquisition of
its 20% noncontrolling interest, the noncontrolling interest holder and the holder
of the controlling interest in the subsidiary enter into a derivative contract that is

indexed to the subsidiary’s equity shares. The form of the derivative may be
structured as follows:

- 5
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o Derivative 1 The parent has a forward contract to purchase the 20% noncon-
trolling interest at a fixed price at a specified future date.

o Derivative 2 The parent has a call option to purchase the 20% noncontrol-
ling interest at a fixed price at a specified future date and the holder of the
noncontrolling interest has a put option to sell its 20% interest to the
parent at the fixed price of the call option.

e Derivative 3 The parent and the holder of the noncontrolling interest enter
into an arrangement referred to as a total return swap, which has the
following characteristics:

— The parent agrees to pay the owner of the noncontrolling interest an
amount based on the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus an
agreed spread and, at the termination date, an amount equal to the net
depreciation, if any, of the fair value of the 20% interest since the
inception of the swap.

The balder of the noncontrolling interest will pay the parent an amount
equal to the dividends received on its 20% interest and, at the termination date,
o areunt equal to the net appreciation, if any, of the 20% interest since the
inception of the swap. The net change in the fair value of the 20% noncontrolling
\sterest at the termination date may be determined based on an appraisal or
pased on the sales price of the stock. The following guidance applies only to the
derivatives discussed above. Further, at the inception of the derivative instru-
ment, the parent company must be the holder of the majority interest of the
subsidiary’s outstanding common stock and the subsidiary must be consolidated
in the parent’s financial statements.

ACCOUNTING ISSUES

¢ How should an entity that is the holder of an 80% controlling interest in a
subsidiary account for an arrangement in which it enters separately into a
derivative transaction with the holder of the 20% noncontrolling interest
in the subsidiary at the time the noncontrolling interest holder purchases
its interest in the subsidiary?

e How should an entity that acquires an 80% controlling interest in a
subsidiary account for an arrangement in which it enters separately into a
derivative with the seller (the 20% noncontrolling interest holder) at the
same time as it acquires a controlling interest in the entity?

* How should an entity that sells a 20% noncontrolling interest in its 100%
owned subsidiary to an unrelated party account for an arrangement in
which the majority owner and the holder of the noncontrolling interest
enter into the type of derivative transaction described above?

ACCOUNTING GUIDANCE

1. ASC 480-10 provides guidance for issuers on the classification and
measurement of financial instruments with the characteristics of both
liabilities and equity. Financial instruments under the scope of ASC 480
must be classified as liabilities, or as assets in some situations. Freestand-
ing financial instruments under the scope of ASC 480 are not permitted
to be combined with other freestanding derivatives unless the combina-
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tion is required under the guidance in ASC 815 and its related guidanee
A parent of a subsidiary that has entered into a forward Purdhasé
contract with the terms of Derivative 1 is required to account for the
transaction as a financing and to consolidate 100% of the subsidj
Because the parent must settle the contract by a physical repurchage 01;
the noncontrolling interest’s shares in exchange for cash, the papep
should recognize the forward purchase contract as a liability that i
initially measured at its present value. The amount of the noncontrolling
interest should be reduced by a corresponding amount. Subsequent
accruals to the amount of the contract and amounts paid or to be paid to
the contract holders, if any, should be accounted for as interest cost.

2. A financial instrument with the terms of Derivative 2 should be aa
counted for based on one of the following three methods, subject to hoy
the contract was issued:

— Issued as a single freestanding instrument. Account for the entire con-
tract initially as a liability, or as an asset under some circumstances,
and measure initially and subsequently at fair value.

— Issued as two separale freestanding instruments—a written put option and
a purchased call option. Initially classify (a) a written put option as a
liability that is measured at fair value under the guidance in ASC 480,
and (b) the purchased call option under the guidance in ASC
815-40-25-4 and ASC 815-40-55-13, as (1) a liability or as an asset if
the contract requires net cash settlement or the counterparty can
choose to settle the contract in net cash, net shares, or a physizal
settlement in shares; or (2) as equity if physical settlement in stares
or net share settlement is required, or the entity can choose s=tilement
in either net cash, physical shares, or net share settleneni in its own
shares, assuming all the criteria in ASC 815-10-25-7 tiwrough 25-35
and ASC 815-40-55-2 through 55-6 have been met

3. Regardless of how Derivative 2 was issued, the noncontrolling interest
should be accounted for separately from the derivative instrument. If,
however, the written put option and the purchased call option are
embedded in the noncontrolling interest’s shares and they are not
mandatorily redeemable, the freestanding instrument should be ac-
counted for as a financing in accordance with the guidance in ASC
480-10-55-59 and the parent should consolidate 100% of the subsidiary.
In that case, the stated yield earmed under the combined derivative
instrument and the noncontrolling interest would be allocated to interest
expense. That is, the financing would be accreted to the strike price of
the forward or option until settlement. The parent would not recognize a
gain or loss on the sale of the noncontrolling interest at the inception of
the derivative instrument. A total return swap with the terms of Deriva-
tive 3 above should be indexed to an obligation to repurchase the
issuer’s shares. Because the issuer may be required to transfer assets t0
settle the obligation, the total return swap should be accounted for asa
liability, or as an asset under some circumstances, that is measured
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initially and subsequently at fair value. The noncontrolling interest
should be accounted for separately from the total return swap.

4. Under the guidance in ASC 480-10, a freestanding financial instrument is
not permitted to be combined with another freestanding financial instru-
ment, unless the combination is required under the guidance in ASC 815.
Therefore, freestanding derivatives under the guidance in ASC 480-10
should not be combined with a noncontrolling interest.

5. The parent retains the risks and rewards of ownership in the noncontrol-
ling interest during the period in which the derivative instrument is in
effect, even though another party is the noncontrolling interest’s legal
owner.

6. The counterparty to the derivative is financing the noncontrolling inter-
est. Therefore, the requirement that the parent account for a purchased
noncontrolling interest and a related derivative on a combined basis as a
financing results in a presentation of the substance of the transaction.

PRACTICE POINTER: The combined instrument is not a derivative under

s scope of ASC 815. The FASB'’s Derivatives Implementation Group reached a
similar conclusion on the combination of two instruments that meet the following
criteria:

a. The transactions are entered into intentionally at the same time,

b. The transactions are with the same counterparty (or structured through

an intermediary),
¢. The transactions are related to the same risk, and

d. No economic reason or business purpose exists to induce the parties to
structure the transactions separately rather than as a single transaction.

ASC 480-10-S99-3A Classification and Measurement of Redeemable Securities

The SEC Observer stated the views of the SEC staff about the application of
Accounting Series Release (ASR) No. 268, Presentation in Financial Statements of
“Redeemable Preferred Stocks.”

SCOPE

Under the guidance in ASR 268, SEC registrants are required to classify outside
permanent equity redeemable preferred securities that can be redeemed (z) at a
fixed or determinable price on a fixed or determinable date, (1) at the holder’s
option, or (c) when an event occurs that is not completely under the issuer’s
control. The SEC staff believes that the above guidance can be applied by analogy
to other equity instruments, such as common stock, derivatives instruments,
noncontrolling interests if the redemption feature is not considered to be a
freestanding option under the scope of ASC 480-10, equity securities held by and
employee stock ownership plan with terms allowing an employee to put the
securities to the sponsor for cash or other assets, and redeemable instruments
classified in equity granted under a share-based payment arrangement with
employees as discussed in ASC 718-10-599.
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The guidance in ASR 268 does not apply to the following instruments:
® Freestanding financial instruments that are classified as assets or liab
under the guidance in ASC 480-10 or other GAAP;

Freestanding derivative instruments classified in stockholders’ o
under the guidance in ASC 815-40, which applies to embedded
tives indexed to, and potentially settled in, a company’s own stock,

ilitieg

Quity

eriva-

Equity instruments subject to registration payment arrangements as de.
fined in ASC 825-20-15-3;

Share-based payment awards;

Convertible debt instruments that contain an equity component that is
classified separately. A convertible debt instrument may be required to be
separated into a liability and an equity component under other GAAP. A
convertible debt instrument that is not redeemable at the balance sheet
date, but that may become redeemable based on the passage of time or the

occurrence of an event is not considered to be redeemable at the balance
sheet date;

Certain redemptions that occur as a result of a liquidation event. How-
ever, deemed liquidation events under which a holder is required or
permitted to redeem only one or more equity instruments of a specific
class for cash or other assets would require the application of ASR 268;

Certain redemptions covered by proceeds from insurance, for example, an

equity instrument that becomes redeemable on the holder’s or disability.
CLASSIFICATION

PRACTICE NOTE: ASC 480 provides guidance for issuers on the <lussifica-
tion and measurement of financial instruments with the characteristics of both
liabilities and equity. Financial instruments under the scope of ASC 480 must be
classified as liabilities, or as assets in some situations, because they represent
an issuer’s obligations.

SEC OBSERVER COMMENT

The SEC Observer clarified the SEC staff’s position regarding the interaction of
the staff’s guidance on this announcement with the guidance in ASC 480 when
accounting for conditionally redeemable preferred shares. The guidance in ASC
480 does not apply to the accounting for such shares if they are conditionally
redeemable at a holder’s option or when an uncertain event not under the
issuer’s control occurs, because there is no unconditional obligation to redeem
the shares by a transfer of assets at a specified or determinable date or when a
certain event occurs. The condition is resolved when an uncertain event occurs.
Once it becomes certain that such an event will occur, the shares should be
accounted for under the provisions of ASC 480, which requires that the shares be
measured at fair value and reclassified as a liability. As a result, stockholders’
equity would be reduced by an equivalent amount with no gain or loss recogni-
tion. The reclassification is similar to a redemption of shares by issuing debt. A
in the redemption of preferred shares discussed in ASC 260-10-995-2 (“The Effect
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Calculation of Earnings per Share for the Redemption or Induced Conver-

. of Preferred Stock”), when calculating earnings per share, the difference
- cen the fair value of the liability and the carrying amount of the preferred
bt;t;: at reclassification should be deducted from or added to net earnings
a'vaﬂable to common shareholders.

on the

The SEC staff believes that an issuer of a redeemable equi_ty sgcurity should
evaluate separately all the events that could trigger redemption if some of t‘he
curity’s redemption features are not under the issuer’s control. A security
zgould be classified outside of permanent (?quity if any event not ur}der t1.1e
issuet’s sole control, regardless of the proba}_)lhty of occurrence, could trigger its
redemption. Although a change in classification is not required if an event occurs
that would cause a potential ordinary liquidation that would require cash pay-
ment only if the company is totally liquidated, the occurrence of events that
could cause the redemption of one or more parﬁculal:‘ 'classes or types of equity
securities wollid require that those securities be classified outs1lde D.f permanent
equity. Thie classification of equity securities whose redgm]_:.)ﬂ_on is not solely
under ithe issuer’s control should be based on the individual facts and

circnimetances.

For example, the SEC Observer noted that a redeemable security .with a
provision that requires the issuer to obtain the approval of the board of directors
to call the security may not necessarily be under the issuer’s control, because the
board of directors may be controlled by the holders of the particular rfedeemable
security. In contrast, classification in permanent equity would continue to be
appropriate in a situation in which a preferred stock agreemgnt includes a
provision stating that the issuer’s decision to sell all or substantially all f)f the
company’s assets and a subsequent distribution to common sto.cl.cholders triggers
redemption of the preferred equity security, because the decision to sell al_l or
substantially all of the issuer’s assets is solely under the issuer’s control. That is, a
distribution to common stockholders cannot be triggered or required by the
preferred stock holders as a result of their representation on the board of
directors.

One exception to the requirement in this announcement that should not }Je
analogized to other transactions occurs when there is a provision that the equity
securities become redeemable as a result of the holder’s death or disability.
Under that circumstance, the redemption of the securities would be funded by
the proceeds of an insurance policy that is in force and that the issuer intends to
and is able to maintain in force. Consequently, the securities continue to be
classified in permanent equity.

MEASUREMENT

The SEC staff believes the initial amount of a redeemable equity security ]'ncludr_ed
In temporary equity in accordance with the guidance in ASR 268 should be its
fair value on the issue date, except in the following circumstances:

® Share-based payment arrangements with employees. Measure the initial
amount recognized in temporary equity based on the instrument’s re-
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demption provisions and the proportion of consideration recejy

employee services. od =

e Employee stock ownership plans. If the cash redemption option is rela
only to a market value guarantee feature, a registrant’s accounting poﬁeﬁ
for temporary equity may be to present (a) the amount of the fOt?l
guaranteed market value of the equity securities, or (b) the maxim
cash obligation based on the fair value of the underlying equity SeCurig
at the balance sheet date.

® Noncontrolling interests. Present in temporary equity the initial carryin
amount of a noncontrolling interest in accordance with the guidangce in
ASC 805-20-30. |

e Convertible debt instruments that include a separately classified equity contpp-
nent. Present an amount in temporary equity only if the instrument is
currently redeemable or convertible at the issuance date for cash or other
assets. If a portion of a component classified as equity is included i
temporary equity, present the amount of cash or other assets that would
be paid to a holder on conversion or redemption at the issuance date i
excess of the component classified as a liability on the issuance date.

® Host equity contracts. Present in temporary equity the initial carrying
amount of the host contract in accordance with the guidance in ASC
815-15-30.

® Preferred stock with a beneficial conversion feature or that is issued with e,

instruments. Include in temporary equity the total amount allocated v she

instrument in accordance with the guidance in ASC 470-20 ‘css the
amount of the beneficial conversion feature recognized at the issuance
date.

The following are the views of the SEC staff about the subsequent measure-

ment of a redeemable equity instrument subject to the requirémients of ASR 268:

® The amount of securities currently redeemable af/a.ixolder’s option should

be adjusted to their maximum redemption amount at each balance sheet
date. If the maximum amount is contingent on an index or similar
variable, the amount in temporary equity should be calculated based on
the existing conditions at the balance sheet date, such as the instrument's
current fair value. At each balance sheet date, the amount of dividends not
currently declared or paid but that will be paid under the redemption
features or if their ultimate payment is not under the registrant’s control
should be included. If an instrument is not currently redeemable, an
adjustment is unnecessary if it is not probable that the instrument will
become redeemable, such as when redemption will occur only based on
the passage of time.

® If it is probable that an equity instrument will become redeemable, the
SEC staff will not object if either of the following accounting methods are
applied consistently for securities that will become redeemable at a future
determinable date but whose redemption amount is variable (e.g., they are
redeemable at fair value):
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a. Accrete changes in the redemption value from the date of issuance or
when redemption becomes probable (if later) to the security’s earliest
redemption date using an appropriate method, usually the interest
method. Changes in redemption value are considered to be changes in
accounting estimates and accounted for, and disclosed, in accordance
with the guidance in ASC 250.

b. Recognize changes in the redemption value (for example, fair value)
immediately as they occur and adjust the security’s carrying amount
to equal the redemption value at the end of each reporting period.
Under this method, the end of the reporting period would be viewed
as if it were also the security’s redemption date.

The following is additional guidance provided by the SEC staff on subse-
quent measurement under the following circumstances:

o Share wwsed payment arrangements with employees. At each balance sheet
date, base the amount included in temporary equity on the instrument’s
fedemption provisions considering the proportion of consideration re-
ceived in the form of employee services (the pattern of recognition of
compensation cost in accordance with the guidance in ASC 718).

o Employee stock ownership plans. If a cash redemption obligation is related
only to a market value guarantee feature, a registrant’s accounting policy
for temporary equity may be to present (a) the amount of the total
guaranteed market value of the equity securities, or (b) the maximum
cash obligation based on the fair value of the underlying equity securities
at the balance sheet date.

o Noncontrolling interests. Determine the adjustment of the carrying amount
in temporary equity after attributing the subsidiary’s net income or a loss
according to the guidance in ASC 810-10.

* Convertible debt instruments that include a separately classified equity compo-
nent. Present an amount in temporary equity only if the instrument is
currently redeemable or convertible at the issuance date for cash or other
assets. If a portion of a component classified as equity is included in
temporary equity, present the amount of cash or other assets that would
be paid to a holder on conversion or redemption at the issuance date in
excess of the component classified as a liability on the issuance date.

e Fair value option. Redeemable equity instruments included in temporary
equity in accordance with the requirements in ASR 268 should not be
measured at fair value through earnings instead of applying the SEC
staff’s measurement guidance. Also see the guidance in ASC
825-10-15-5(f), which prohibits the use of the fair value option for financial
instruments that are wholly or partially classified in stockholder’s equity,
including temporary equity.

The SEC staff believes that regardless of which of the above accounting
methods is used to account for a redeemable equity security, that security’s
tarrying amount should be reduced only to the extent that the registrant had
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previously increased the security’s carrying amount as a result of the applicatigy
of the guidance in this Topic.

The SEC staff expects registrants to apply the accounting method Selecteg
consistently and to disclose the selected policy in the notes to the finangig)
statements. In addition, registrants that elect to accrete changes in redemptign
value over the period from the date of issuance to the earliest redemption dag
should disclose the security’s redemption value as if it were redeemable.

RECLASSIFICATION INTO PERMANENT EQUITY

If temporary classification of a redeemable equity security is no longer required
its carrying amount should be reclassified from temporary to permanent equﬁyr
at the date of the occurrence of the event causing reclassification. Prior financia]
statements should not be adjusted. The SEC staff also believes that reversal of
previously recorded adjustments to the security’s carrying amount would pa
inappropriate when a reclassification occurs.

DECONSOLIDATION OF A SUBSIDIARY

An entity that deconsolidates a subsidiary recognizes a gain or loss on that
transaction in net income based on the measurement guidance in ASC
810-10-40-5. The carrying amount of a noncontrolling interest, if any, in the
former subsidiary affects that gain or loss calculation. The SEC staff believes that
because adjustments to a noncontrolling interest’s carrying amount from the
application of the guidance in this SEC staff announcement have not entered irt,
the determination of the entity’s net income, the noncontrolling interest’s carry
ing amount should likewise not include any adjustments made to the noncontro;.
ling interest as a result of the application of the guidance in this SHC staff
announcement. Previous adjustments to the noncontrolling interesi’s carrying
amount from the application of the guidance in this SEC staff ‘Wimouncement
should be eliminated by recording a credit to the parent entity’s equity.

EARNINGS PER SHARE
Preferred Securities Issued by a Parent or Single Reporting Entity

Increases or decreases in the carrying amount of a redeemable security should be
treated like dividends on nonredeemable stock by charging retained earnings, or
if no retained earnings exist, by charging paid-in capital, regardless of the
method used to account for the security or whether the security is redeemable at
a fixed price or at fair value. In calculating earnings per share and the ratio of
earnings to combined fixed charges and preferred stock dividends, income
available to common stockholders should be reduced or increased as a result of
increases or decreases in a preferred security’s carrying amount. Guidance re-
lated to the accounting at the date of a redemption or induced conversion of a
preferred equity security may be found in ASC 260-10-599-2 (“The Effect on the

Calculation of Earnings per Share for the Redemption or Induced Conversion of
Preferred Stock™)

Common Securities Issued by a Parent or a Single Reporting Entity

Increases or decreases in the carrying amount of a redeemable security should be
treated like dividends on nonredeemable stock by charging retained earnings, of
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if o retained earnings exist, by charging paid-in capital,. re.gardless of the

ethod used to account for the security or whether the security is redeemable at
mﬁxed price or at fair value. But those increases or decreases in a redeemable
g mmon stock’s carrying amount should not affect income available for common
P K holders. The SEC staff believes that in so far as a common shareholder has a
StOc’crachlal right to receive an amount other than the fair value of those shares at
CO; mption, a common shareholder has, in substance, received a different distri-
F ﬁeon than the other common shareholders. Entities whose capital structures
?r?clude a class of common stock with dividend rates -that.differ from th'ose of
another class of common shareholders but without senior rights, are }*equu:ed to
calculate their earnings per share based on the two-cl.ass methoq discussed in
ASC 260-10-45-59A. As a result, increases or decreases in the carrying amount of
a class of common stock that is redeemable at other lthan fair value should be
considered in the caleulation of earnings per share using the two-class melthoe?l.
In footnote 8-of this Topic, the SEC staff states that if a common security is
redeemable-atother than fair value, it is acceptable to allocate earnings under the
two-class method using one of the following two methods:

o Treat the total periodic adjustment to the security’s Carrymg amount as a
result of the application of the guidance in this Topic like an actual

dividend, or

e Treat like an actual dividend only the portion of the periodic adjustment
to the security’s carrying amount as a result of the applicatio_n of the
guidance in this Topic that represents a redemption in excess of fair value.

The SEC staff does not expect the two-class method to be used in the cal.culation
of earnings per share if a class of common stock is redeemable _at fair value,
because the dividend distribution to those shareholders does not differ from that
made to other common shareholders. The SEC staff believe that common stoc_k
redeemable based on a specified formula is considered redeemable at fair value if
the formula is intended to equal or reasonably approximate fair value. However,
a formula based only on a fixed multiple of earnings or a similar measure would
not qualify.

The SEC staff also believe that likewise, the two-class method need not be
used if share-based payment awards in the form of common shares or options or
common shares granted to employees are redeemable at fair value. However, the
two-class method may still apply to such share-based payment awards under the
guidance in ASC 260-10-45-59A and ASC 260-10-45-60, 45._6.0A through 45-68,
55-24 through 55-30, 55-71 through 55-75 (Participating Securities and the Two-Class
Method under Statement No. 128).

Noncontrolling Interests

In accordance with the guidance in ASC 810-10-45-23, (a) changes in a pareqt’s
ownership interest accounted for by the equity method while a parent retains
control of the subsidiary and (b) an adjustment to a noncontrolling interest as a
result of the application of the guidance in this SEC staff announcement, bave no
effect on net income or comprehensive income in the consolidated financial
statements. Instead, such adjustments are accounted for like a rePurchase _of a
noncontrolling interest, although they may be recognized in retained earnings
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PART I: GENERAL GUIDANCE
OVERVIEW

The tax consequences of many transactions recognized in the financial statementg
are included in determining income taxes currently payable in the same account.
ing period. Sometimes, however, tax laws differ from the recognition and me;.
surement requirements of financial reporting standards. Differences arige
between the tax bases of assets or liabilities and their reported amounts in the
financial statements. These differences are called temporary differences and they
give rise to deferred tax assets and liabilities.

Temporary differences ordinarily reverse when the related asset is recovereqd
or the related liability is settled. A deferred tax liability or deferred tax asset
represents the increase or decrease in taxes payable or refundable in future years
as a result of temporary differences and carryforwards at the end of the current
year.

The objectives of accounting for income taxes are to recognize:
¢ The amount of taxes payable or refundable for the current year.

¢ The deferred tax liabilities and assets that result from future tax conse-

quences of events that have been recognized in the enterprise’s financial
statements or tax returns.

BACKGROUND

Accounting for income taxes is strongly influenced by the fact that some transac-
tions are treated differently for financial reporting purposes and for income iax
purposes. Other transactions are treated the same way in financial reporting and
for income tax purposes, but in different accounting periods. Differsnces in
timing are referred to as temporary differences and are reconciled in the financial

statements by the recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities.

For several decades, deferred tax assets and liabilities were recognized in the
financial statements by the deferred method which placed priciarily emphasis on
determining net income by matching of revenues and expenses. Income tax
expense was determined by applying the current tax rate to pretax accounting
income. Any differences between the resulting expense and the amount of
income taxes payable in the current period were adjustments to deferred income
taxes. The deferred method focused first on the income statement, and adjust-
ment to balance sheet elements were determined by the measurement of income
tax expense.

The Financial Accounting Standards Board significantly changed this ap-
proach when it changed accounting for income taxes to the asset/liability
method, frequently referred to as simply the liability method. The liability
method places primary emphasis on the valuation of the elements of the balance
sheet—deferred tax assets and liabilities. The amount of income tax expense
currently payable or refundable, plus or minus the changes in deferred tax assets
and liabilities, is the amount of income tax expense recognized in the income
statement for a financial reporting period. The liability method focuses first on
the balance sheet, and the amount of income tax expense is determined by
changes in the elements of the balance sheet.
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ASC 740-10: OVERALL

THE ASSET/LIABILITY METHOD

ASC 740 requires income taxes to be accounted for by the asset/liability method.

[ts main effects on financial statements include the following;:

o Emphasis is on the recognition and measurement of deferrec.i tax assets
and liabilities. Deferred income tax expense is determined residually (1.(_3.,
as the difference between the beginning and required ending balances in
deferred tax assets and liabilities for the period).

o Deferred tax asset and liability amounts are remeasured when tax rates
change to approximate more closely the amounts at which those assets
and liabilities will be realized or settled.

e Deferred tax assets are recognized for operating loss and other carryfor-
wards. Deferred tax assets are subject to reduction by a valuation allow-
ance if €7idence indicates that it is more likely than not that some or all of
the defsrred tax assets will not be realized. Determining this valuation
alléwance is similar to accounting for reductions in receivables to net
vezlizable value.

«“Disclosure requirements result in the presentation of a significant amount
of information in the notes to the financial statements.

PRACTICE NOTE: The asset/liability method is commonly referred to as the
liability method, although it results in both deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities.

GENERAL PROVISIONS OF ASC 740

Scope
ASC 740 requires what traditionally has been referred to as "compr_ehensi\fe
income tax allocation,” as opposed to partial allocation or nonallocation. This
means that the income tax effects of all revenues, expenses, gains, losses, and
other events that create differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their amounts for financial reporting are required to be recognized (ASC
740-10-05-1).
ASC 740 is applicable to:
e Domestic federal income taxes and foreign, state, and local taxes based on
income-(ASC 740-10-15-3).
® An enterprise’s domestic and foreign operations that are conso]ida'ted,
combined, or accounted for by the equity method. ASC 740 provides
guidance for determining the tax bases of assets and liabilities for finan-
cial reporting purposes (ASC 740-10-15-3).
* Foreign enterprises in preparing financial statements in accordance with
U.S. GAAP. (ASC 740-10-15-2).

ASC 740 does not apply to the following transactions/activities (ASC
740-10-15-4):
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1. A franchise tax to the extent it is based on capital and there is ng
additional tax based on income.

2. A withholding tax for the benefit of recipients of a dividend.

Three impaortant financial statement issues are specifically set aside and not
covered by ASC 740:

1. Accounting for the investment tax credit (ITC)
2. Accounting for income taxes in interim periods
3. Discounting deferred income taxes

Accounting for the ITC and accounting for income taxes in interim periods
are covered by other authoritative pronouncements. Discounting of deferred
income taxes is not permitted.

Basic Principles of the Asset/Liability Method

The objectives of accounting for income taxes are identified in terms of elements
of the balance sheet (ASC 740-10-10-1):

e To recognize the amount of taxes payable or refundable for the current
year

e To recognize the deferred tax assets and liabilities for the future ta
consequences of events that have been recognized in the financial state-
ments or in tax returns

This emphasis on the balance sheet is consistent with the liability inathod of
accounting for income taxes incorporated ASC 740.

Accounting for income taxes under ASC 740 is based on th= following basic
principles at the date of the financial statements:

® A tax liability or asset is recognized for the estimated taxes payable or
refundable on tax returns for the current and prior years.

® A deferred tax liability or asset is recognized for the estimated future tax

effects attributable to temporary differences and carryforwards. (ASC
740-10-25-2)

PRACTICE POINTER: The reader is encouraged to consult ASC
740-10-25-2 for exceptions to these basic requirements in certain specialized
situations (e.g., foreign subsidiaries or corporate joint ventures, undistributed
earnings of a domestic subsidiary or corporate joint venture that is essentially
permanent in duration, bad debt reserves of U.S. savings and loan associations,
policyholders’ surplus of stock life insurance entities, deposits in statutory re-
serve funds by U.S. steamship entities, leveraged leases, goodwill for which
amortization is not deductible for tax purposes, inventory in the buyer's tax
jurisdiction where the carrying value as reported in the consolidated financial
statements as a result of an intra-entity transfer of inventory from one tax-paying
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component to another tax-paying component of the same c_onsolidated group,
assets and liabilities remeasured from the local currency into the func_tlonal
currency using historical exchange rates and that resul? from changes in ex-
change rates or indexing for tax purposes. Many of these include certain specific
time parameters for application.

=

Temporary Differences

Deferred tax assets and liabilities that result from temporary differences are
pased on the assumption that assets and liabilities in an entity’s balance sheet
eventually will be realized or settled at their recorded amounts (ASC

740-10-25-20).
The following categories of temporary differences refer to events that result

in differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their reported
amounts in the financial statements (ASC 740-10-25-20):

e Revenies or gains that are taxable after they are recognized in accounting
ihcome (e.g., receivables from installment sales)
Expenses or losses that are deductible for tax purposes after they are
recognized in accounting income (e.g., a product warranty liability)
Revenues or gains that are taxable before they are recognized in account-
ing income (e.g., subscriptions received in advance)
Expenses or losses that are deductible for tax purposes before they are
recognized in accounting income (e.g., depreciation expense)
A reduction in the tax basis of depreciable assets because of tax credit
Investment tax credits accounted for by the deferred method

An increase in the tax basis of assets because of indexing when the local
currency is the functional currency

Business combinations accounted for by not-for-profit entities by the
acquisition method

* Intra-entity transfers of an asset other than inventory

Taxable and Deductible Temporary Differences

Temporary differences that will result in taxable amounts in future years when
the related asset or liability is recovered or settled are referred to as taxable
temporary differences. Temporary differences that will result in deductible amounts
in future years are referred to as deductible temporary differences. (ASC
740-10-25-23). Table 46-1 provides examples of some of the more common taxable
and deductible temporary differences.

Temporary differences include some items that do not appear in the company’s
balance sheet. For example, a company may expense organization costs when
they are incurred but recognize them as a tax deduction in a later year. Between
the two events, no balance-sheet item exists for this type of temporary difference
(ASC 740-10-25-25, 26).
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The identification of temporary differences may require significant profes.
sional judgment. Similar items may be temporary differences in one instance and
not in another. For example, the excess of the cash surrender value of lif
insurance over premiums paid is a temporary difference and results in deferreq
taxes if the cash surrender value is expected to be recovered by surrendering the
policy, but it is not a temporary difference and does not result in deferred taxes jf
the asset is expected to be recovered upon the death of the insured (ASC
740-10-25-30). Management intent and professional judgment are important fac.
tors in making the appropriate determination of the nature of assets and liabili-
ties of this type.

PRACTICE POINTER: Developing a system for identifying and tracking the
amounts of all temporary differences and carryforwards is an important imple-
mentation issue for ASC 740. Theoretically, differences should be identified by
comparing items and amounts in the entity’s balance sheets for accounting
purposes and for tax purposes. Many companies do not maintain tax-basis
balance sheets, though this may be the most logical way to identify and track
temporary differences in relatively complex situations.

Table 46-1: Examples of Taxable and Deductible Temporary Differences

Nature of Temporary

Difference

Explanation Deferred Tax

Taxable Temporary Differences

Use of modified accelerated Liability, to be paid as
cost recovery system MACRS deduction
(MACRS) for tax purposes becomes less hen

and straight-line for straight-lins a=spreciation
accounting purposes

makes the tax basis of the

asset less than the

accounting basis

Sales recognized for
accounting purposes at
transaction date and
deferred for tax purposes
until collection, resulting in a
difference between the tax
and accounting basis of the
installment receivable

Depreciable assels

Installment sale
receivable

Liability, to be paid when
the sale is recognized
for tax purposes
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Deductible Temporary Differences

Expense recognized on Asset, to be recovered
accrual basis for accounting  when deduction is
purposes and on cash basis recognized for tax

for tax purposes, resulting purposes

in a liability that is

recognized for financial

reporting purposes but has

a zero basis for tax

purposes

Accounis receivable Expense recognized on an Asset, to be recovered

allowance for doubtful accrual basis for accounting when uncollectible

accounts purposes and deferred for account is written off for
fax purposes fax purposes

Warranty liability

Certain differences between the tax basis and the accounting basis of assets
and liabilities will not result in taxable or deductible amounts in future years,
and no deferred tax asset or liability should be recognized (ASC 740-10-05-9).
These diffefences are often referred to as permanent differences, although that
term ic ot used in ASC 740.

Relognizing and Measuring Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities

The emphasis placed on the balance sheet by the asset/liability method of
accounting for income taxes is evident from the focus on the recognition of
deferred tax liabilities and assets. The change in these liabilities and assets is
combined with the income taxes currently payable or refundable to determine
income tax expense (ASC 740-10-30-3).

Five steps are required to complete the annual computation of deferred tax
liabilities and assets (ASC 740-10-30-5):

1. Identify the types and amounts of existing temporary differences and
the nature and amount of each type of operating loss and tax credit
carryforward and the remaining length of the carryforward period.

2. Measure the total deferred tax liability for taxable temporary differences
using the applicable tax rate.

3. Measure the total deferred tax asset for deductible temporary differences
and operating loss carryforwards using the applicable tax rate.

4. Measure deferred tax assets for each type of tax credit carryforward.

5. Reduce deferred tax assets by a valuation allowance if it is more likely
than not that some or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized.

Valuation Allowance and Tax-Planning Strategies

A basic requirement is to reduce the measurement of deferred tax assets not
expected to be realized (ASC 740-10-30-16) All available evidence is considered to
determine whether a valuation allowance for deferred tax assets is needed and, if
$0, at what amount (ASC 740-10-30-17).

Determining the need for and calculating the amount of the valuation
allowance involves the following steps at the end of each accounting period:
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L. Determine the amount of the deferred tax asset recognized on each
deductible temporary difference, operating loss, and tax credit carryfor.

ward. (These are not offset by the deferred tax liability on taxable
temporary differences.)

2. Assess the sources of future taxable income which may be available ¢,
recognize the deductible differences and carryforwards by considering
the following (ASC 740-10-30-18):

a. Taxable income in prior carryback year(s) if carryback is permitted
under tax law

b. Future reversals of existing taxable temporary differences

¢. Tax planning strategies that would make income available at appro-
priate times in the future that would otherwise not be available

d. Future taxable income exclusive of reversing differences and
carryforwards

PRACTICE POINTER: The four sources of future taxable income
(listed above) are organized differently here than in ASC 740 in order to
emphasize the implementation of the standard. In identifying income to
support the recognition of deferred tax assets (and thereby supporting
a case that an allowance is not required), a logical approach is to
consider sources of income in order from the most objective to the least
objective. Income in prior carryback years is most objective, followed
by the income from the reversal of taxable temporary differences,

income resulting from tax planning strategies, and finally, future income
from other sources.

=

3. Based on all available evidence, make a judgment concerning the real-
izability of the deferred tax asset.

4. Record the amount of the valuation allowance, o1 Change in the valua-
tion allowance (the example below assumes that the allowance is being
recorded for the first time or is being increased for $100,000)
Income tax expense $100,000

Allowance to reduce deferred tax asset to $100,000
lower recoverable value

PRACTICE NOTE: ASC 740 relaxes the criteria for recognizing deferred tax
assets by requiring the recognition of deferred tax assets for all deductible
temporary differences and all operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. An
important adjunct to this provision, however, is the requirement to determine the
need for, and amount of, a valuation allowance to reduce the deferred tax asset
to its realizable value. The valuation allowance aspects of U.S. GAAP require
significant judgment on the part of accountants and auditors of financial state-
ments. A valuation allowance is required if it is more likely than not that some or
all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. More fikely than not is defined
as a likelihood of more than 50%.
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Applicable Tax Rate

Reference to the applicable tax rate is made in the four steps ide.nt'jﬁed gbove.
The applicable tax rate is that rate expected to appl}r to taxable income in the

eriods in which the deferred tax liability or asset is e?cpected_ to be settled or
realized based on enacted tax law. If the entity’s taxable income is low enough to
make the graduated tax rates a significant factor, the entity uses the average
graduated tax rate applicable to the amount of estimated annual taxable income
in the periods in which the deferred tax liability or asset is expected to be settled
or realized (ASC 740-10-10-3). For example, if a company has taxable temporary
differences of $20,000 that are expected to reverse in a year when no other income
is expected, the applicable tax rate under current tax law is 15% and the deferred
tax liability is:

$20,000 x 15% = $3,000

If the taxable temporary differences total $60,000, graduated tax rates be-
come a facivr (the tax rate changes at $50,000); deferred taxes are $10,000:

$50,000 x 15% = $ 7,500
$10,000 x 25% = 2,500
$10,000

The average applicable tax rate is 16.67%.
$10,000/%$60,000 = 16.67%

PRACTICE POINTER: Determining the applicable tax rate may be relatively
straightforward, or it may require careful analysis and professional judgment.
When an entity has been consistently profitable at sufficiently high levels that
graduated tax rates are not a significant factor, use the single flat tax rate_ at
which all income is used to compute the amount of deferred taxes on cumulative
temporary differences. If a company experiences intermittent tax loss and tax
income years, or if the company is consistently profitable at a level low enough
that the graduated tax rates are a significant factor, greater judgment is required
to determine the applicable tax rate.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are remeasured at the end of each account-
ing period and adjusted for changes in the amounts of cumulative temporary
differences and for changes in the applicable income tax rate, as well as for other
changes in the tax law (ASC 740-10-35-4). As a result of this procedure, the
deferred tax provision is a combination of two elements:

1. The change in deferred taxes because of the change in the amounts of
temporary differences

2. The change in deferred taxes because of a change in the tax rate caused
by new enacted rates or a change in the applicability of graduated tax
rates (or other changes in the tax law)

Treating the change in income tax rates in this manner is consistent with
accounting for a change in estimate under ASC 250 (Accounting Changes and
Error Corrections).
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Tax Planning Strategies

Consideration of tax planning strategies is required by ASC 740. Tax plamung
strategies are an important part of determining the need for, and the amount of,
the valuation allowance for deferred tax assets. Tax-planning strategies are
actions that (ASC 740-10-30-19):

® Are prudent and feasible

® The entity might not ordinarily take, but would take to prevent an operat-
ing loss or tax credit carryforward from expiring before it is used

¢ Would result in the realization of deferred tax assets

Examples include actions the entity could take to accelerate taxable income
to utilize expiring carryforwards, to change the character of taxable or deductible

amounts from ordinary income or loss to capital gain or loss, and to switch from
tax-exempt to taxable investments.

Negative Evidence

Negative evidence, such as cumulative losses in recent years, supports a conclu-

sion that a valuation allowance is necessary. Other examples of negative evi-
dence are (ASC 740-10-30-21):

® A history of operating loss or tax credit carryforwards expiring before
they are used

® Losses expected in early future years (by a presently profitable entity)

® Unsettled circumstances that, if unfavorably resolved, would adversely

affect future operations and profit levels on a continuing basis in<&:ture
years

® A carryback or carryforward period that is so short that it significantly
limits the probability of realizing deferred tax assets

Positive Evidence

Positive evidence supports a conclusion that a valuation allowance is not required.
Examples of positive evidence are (ASC 740-10-30-22):

* Existing contracts or firm sales backlog that will produce more than

enough taxable income to realize the deferred tax asset based on existing
sales prices and cost structures

® An excess of appreciated asset value over the tax basis of the entity’s net
assets in an amount sufficient to realize the deferred tax asset

* A strong earnings history exclusive of the loss that created the future
deductible amount, coupled with evidence indicating that the loss is an

aberration rather than a continuing condition (e.g., an unusual or infre-
quent item)

PRACTICE POINTER; Projecting the reversal of temporary differences for
each future year individually is commonly referred to as “scheduling.” Does ASC
740 require scheduling? On the one hand, the requirement to recognize deferred
tax assets and liabilities for all taxable and deductible temporary differences, as
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well as for all carryforwards, seems to diminish or eliminate the need to sche(t:ls-
ule. Also, using a flat tax rate in determin.ing the amount of deferre(I:I t;—\xd_as‘zeal
and liabilities, as described earlier, dimin!shes the need to scheduhe in |\.; fur
future years. On the other hand, schedullng may help Qetermlne: e ne]e i(rju :
and amount of, a valuation allowance, including the co_n5|derat_|on s tax-p anrr;atg
strategies. To determine the availability of taxable income in the .':1_p;c)jrol:>ents
years—io take advantage of deferred ta?( afssets and t<_3 make the jL:( gmrl ©
concerning the valuation allowance—projecting ltaxatl)le income from know
estimated sources by year, or scheduling, may still be important.

Professional judgment is required m considering the relative mj:pafct t}?é
negative and positive evidence to determine the need.for, a1l1d an:]:(-)lul’l ff-; c,t y
yaluation allowance for deferred tax assets. The weight given he e}f oo
negative and positive evidence should be comme.nsura'te with t e e;<1 e °
which it can be objectively verified. The more negative §V1dence exists, the r?or

ositive evidence is needed to conclude that a valuation allowance is not re-
quired (ASC 740-10-30-23).

the effect of a change in the valuation allowarulce t'hat results from a changle
in circumstances, which in turn causes a change m.]u_dgment about th(le real-
}ciabﬂity of the related deferred tax asset, is included in income from continuing
operations with limited exceptions (ASC 740-10-42-20).

SPECIALIZED APPLICATIONS OF ASC 740
Several specialized applications of ASC 740 are summarized briefly below.

Change in Tax Status

An enterprise’s tax status may change from nontaxab'le to taxable or taxab.lfe% to
nontaxable. A deferred tax liability or asset is recognized for temporary differ-
ences at the date that a nontaxable enterprise becomes a taxable enterprise. An
existing deferred tax liability or asset is eliminated at the date an enterprise
becomes a nontaxable enterprise (ASC 740-10-25-32).

Reclassification of Certain Tax Effects

PRACTICE POINTER: The following amendments to the ASC are ef_fectiye
for all entities for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, and for interim
periods within those fiscal years.

ASU 2018-02, Income Statement—Reporting Comprehensive Income
(Topic 220): Reclassification of Certain Tax _Effer_:ts from chumulated Other
Comprehensive Income, deals with the reclassification of certain tax effects from
accumulated other comprehensive income that results from the Tax Cuts and
Jobs Act of 2017. This amendment allows a reclassification from accumulated
other comprehensive income to retained earnings from stra'nded tax effects
resulting from this Act. See Chapter 5, ASC 220—Comprehensive Income, of the
2019 GAAP Guide for more coverage of this topic.
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those instruments are recognized as paid-in capital (ASC 718-740-35-3).

The amount deductible on the employer’s tax return may be less than the
cumulative compensation cost recognized for financial reporting purposes. The

write-off of a deferred tax asset related to that deficiency, net of any relateq
valuation allowance, is first offset to the extent of any remaining additional pajq.
in capital from excess tax benefits from previous awards accounted for in
accordance with the requirements under previous U.S. GAAP. Any remainin,
balance of the write-off of a deferred tax asset related to a tax deficiency shall he
recognized in the income statement (ASC 718-740-35-5; 7 18-740-45-04)

PRACTICE NOTE: The special applications discussed in this section illus-
trate the pervasive nature of accounting for income taxes. Income tax considera-
tions affect many parts of the financial statements and many kinds of business
transactions. This dimension of accounting for income taxes makes ASC 740 a
very important pronouncement and accounts, at least partially, for the long and

difficult process of making the transition from the deferred method to the asset/
liability method.

Leveraged Leases

For the specific requirements for accounting for income taxes related to leveraged
leases, see Subtopic 842-50.
FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION AND DISCLOSURE ISSUES

ASC 740 requires deferred tax assets and liabilities to be presented in aclassified
balance sheet as noncurrent amounts (ASC 740-10-45-4).

PRACTICE NOTE: This represents a departure from past nractice in which
deferred tax assets and liabilities were presented in net currait-and net noncur-
rent amounts. As part of the FASB's simplification project, the previous require-
ment to separate deferred tax assets and liabilities into current and noncurrent
amounts has been eliminated. For public business entities, this new presentation
is effective for financial statements issued for annual periods beginning after
December 15, 2016, and interim periods within those annual periods. For all
other entities, the effective date is for financial statements issued for annual
periods beginning after December 15, 2017, and for interim periods within annual
periods beginning after December 15, 2018. Earlier application is permitted for
all entities as of the beginning of an interim or annual reporting period. The
change required may be accounted for either prospectively or retroactively with
appropriate disclosure of the nature of the change and whether prior period
information has been retrospectively adjusted.

For a particular tax-paying component of an entity and within a particular tax
jurisdiction, all deferred tax liabilities and assets shall be offset and presented as
a single noncurrent amount. However, an entity shall not offset deferred tax
liabilities and assets attributable to different tax-paying components of the entity
or to different tax jurisdictions (ASC 740-10-45-6).

realized tax benefits that exceed the previously recognized deferred tax asset foy Disclosures

Tth]fl?erprise’s balance sheet must be disclosed (ASC 740-10-50-2):
an
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llowing components of the net deferred tax liability or asset recognized in

o The total of all deferred tax liabilities for taxable temporary differences

e The total of all deferred tax assets for deductible temporary differences
and loss and tax credit carryforwards

e The total valuation allowance recognized for deferred tax assets
e The net change during the year in the total valuation allowance

Disclosure of significant components of income tax expense E.lﬁl’ibll,‘ltable to
ontinuing operations for each year presented is required in the financial state-
c
ments or related notes (ASC 740-10-50-9):

o Curfont tax expense or benefit
e~Daterred tax expense or benefit
¢ Investment tax credit

e Government grants (to the extent recognized as reductions in income tax
expense)

e Tax benefits of operating loss carryforwards
o Tax expense that results from allocating tax benefits

» Adjustments to a deferred tax liability or asset for enacted' changes in tax
laws or rates or for a change in the tax status of the enterprise

e Adjustments of the beginning balance of the Valuat‘ior} allowance because
of a change in circumstances that causes a change in judgment about the
realizability of the related deferred tax asset in the future

PRACTICE NOTE: The effect of two unique features of the asset/liability
method can be seen in the disclosure requirements listed above. The seventh
item requires disclosure of the amount of the adjustment to d_eferrgd tax ass_,ets
and liabilities for enacted changes in tax laws or rates. The glghth item requires
disclosure of the amount of the adjustment of the beginning balance of the
valuation allowance on deferred tax assets made as a result of a change in
judgment about the realizability of that item.

The amount of income tax expense or benefit allocated to continuing opera-
tions and amounts separately allocated to other items shall be disclosed for each
year for which those items are presented.

Several distinctions are made in the disclosures required by pub.lic enter-
prises and those required by nonpublic enterprises. The two most significarit
ones are summarized as follows (ASC 740-10-50-6, 8, 12, 13):
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Public/Nonpublic Company Disclosures

Public Nonpublic
Approximation of tax effect Description of types
of each type
Reconciliation in
percentages or dollars

Temporary Differences

and Carryforwards
Statutory Reconciliation Description of major

reconciling items

Companies with operating loss and tax credit carryforwards must discloge
the amount and expiration dates. Disclosure is also required for any portion of
the valuation allowance for deferred tax assets for which subsequently recog-
nized tax benefits will be credited directly to contributed equity (ASC

740-10-50-3).

An entity that is a member of a group that files a consolidated tax return
must disclose the following in its separately issued financial statements (ASC

740-10-50-17):
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20X8, $7,000 was received that was not earned by year-end. Depreciation is a
taxable temporary difference that reduces current tax payable and gives rise to a
deferred tax liability. The warranties and revenue received in advance are deductible
temporary differences that increase current tax payable and give rise to deferred tax
assefs.

Exhibit A presents analyses that facilitate the preparation of the year-end tax
accrual, as well as information for the financial statements. Similar analyses are used
for each of the three years in this lllustration. The analysis in the upper portion of
Exhibit A “rolls forward” the amount of the temporary differences from the beginning to
the end of the year. Because 20X8 is the first year for Power Company, the beginning
balances are all zero. The change column includes the amounts used in the earlier
calculation to determine taxable income from pretax accounting income. The numbers
without parentheses are deductible temporary differences; those in parentheses are
taxable temporary differences. The company is in a net taxable temporary difference
position at the end of the year because the net amount of temporary differences is
$(11,000), due to the large amount of the depreciation difference.

e The aggregate amount of current and deferred tax expense for each
statement of earnings presented and the amount of any tax-related bal-
ances due to or from affiliates as of the date of each statement of financial
position presented

¢ The principal provisions of the method by which the consolidated amount
of current and deferred tax expense is allocated to members of the group
and the nature and effect of any changes in that method during the year

lllustration of Major Provisions of ASC 740

This illustration considers Power Company for three consecutive years, with the
objective of preparing the year-end income tax accrual and income tax infoima-
tion for the company’s financial statements. Power Company’s firsi vear of
operations is 20X8. During that year, the company reported $160.000 of pretax
accounting income. Permanent and temporary differences are combined with
pretax financial income to derive taxable income, as follows:

Pretax financial income $160,000
Permanent difference:

Interest on municipal securities 5,000
Pretax financial income subject to tax $155,000
Temporary differences:

Depreciation (28,000)

Warranties 10,000

Revenue received in advance __ 7,000
Taxable income $144,000

The $5,000 interest on municipal securities represents nontaxable income,
and the $28,000 depreciation temporary difference represents the excess of
accelerated write-off for tax purposes over straight-line depreciation for financial
reporting purposes. Warranties are expensed at the time of sale on an estimated
basis, but are deductible for income tax purposes only when paid. In 20X8,
$10,000 more was accrued than paid. Revenue received in advance is taxable at
the time received, but is deferred for financial reporting purposes until earned. In

-~

an ~

EXHIBIT A: Analysis of Cumulative Temporary Differences and Deferred
Taxes, 20X8

Cumulative Temporary Differences (TD)

Beginning Ending
Balance Balance
20X8 Change 20X8
Deductible TD:
Warranties 0 $ 10,000 $ 10,000
Revenue received in
advance 0 7,000 7,000
(Taxable) TD:
Depreciation 0 (28,000) (28,000)
0 $(11,000) $(11,000)
Deferred Income Taxes
Beginning Ending
Balance Balance
@—% @34% Change
Assets:
Warranties 0 $3,400 $3,400
Revenue receivedin
advance 0 2,380 2,380
(Liabilities):
Depreciation 0 (9,520) (9,520)
0 $(3,740) $(3,740)
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PART I: GENERAL GUIDANCE
ASC 835-10: OVERALL

OVERVIEW

Under certain cond'itions,_ interest ig capitalized as part of the acquisition

e aslset Interest is capitalized only during the period of time te 11'COSt o

complete and prepare the asset for its intended use, which may be eit}?e;recli ]
e Saie gy

HOteBum?ﬁss transactions may involve the exchange of cash or other assets f,
i c;; other inst,trument. When the interest rate on the instrument is Consisfr :
€ market rate at the time of the transacti =

. i on, the face amount of
ﬁiﬁhﬁi:;ls atssujlfﬁc—:‘td‘to(??fequal to the value of the other asset(s) exchanggée
rate that is different from the prevaili ;

‘ . ing market rate, h,
implies that the face amount of the i ' e
€ Instrument may not equal the val :
. . ue

other asset(s) exchanged. In this case, it may be necessary to impute mtere;ft}t]hi
a

15 [lO[: Stated as pa[t Oj t}le lnStIuIlLent or t() I e 11 1@!88‘ at a rate ot I ‘t‘h
z eCcognt

BACKGROUND

gixe b?;lti of acccmnhin-g,r for depreciable fixed assets is cost, including all fia ma]
penditures of readying an asset for use are capitalized as part of a~"«1115iﬁon

COSt. UIL[[ECESS: [y E!Xpelldltules tllat d() IlOt a d t() ﬂ (] U.f.'] hty ()f t] le@sset S}l“uld
d

ASC 835 covers the promul
: the gated U.S. GAAP on the capitafization of j
;(()):ttshop .cejlf'talg Elluallfymg assets that are undergoing acﬁ‘ﬁ*ibs o ;)rrelé;ar?i?;i
eir mtended use. ASC 835 requires that the same muaterial; i
: aferiality tests applied
by regular U.S. GAAP be applied to the materiality of capitalizing ijlf*tterest CI())Et.e

o }‘;SC 835 applies tq the capitalization of interest cost on equity funds, loans
advances made by investors to certain investees that are accounted f01; by thé

equity method as descri i :
Ventares) escribed in ASC 323 (Investments——Eqmty Method and Joint

ASC 835 provides special treatment ; italizing i
_ . ent in capitalizing interest costs on qualify-
Ing assets that are acquired with (a) the proceeds of tax-exempt borrowir?gs ];-Ifl{i

(b) gifts or grants that i
il i_ grants that are restricted for the sole purpose of acquiring a specific

. CIZStAO(?ZIS:ESz;I?JfE Th? zasis of capitalizing certain interest costs is that
o : uid include all costs necessary to bring the ass
gon.?'ltlrlon e_md location for its intended use. The requirementg of ASCetSthﬂ:s
aplialize interest cost may result in a lack of co ili
it : : mparability among reportin

entities, depending on their method of financi i e :
ancing major asset acquisitions. For

example, Company A and Company B both acquire an identical asset for $10
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million that requires three years to complete for its intended use. Company A
ays cash, and at the end of three years, the total cost of the asset is $10 million.
In addition, assume that Company A also had net income of $2 million a year for
each of the three years and had no interest expense. Assume also that Company
B had $1.5 million net income for each of the three years after deducting
$500,000 of interest expense per year. If Company B qualifies for capitalized
interest costs under ASC 835, it would reflect $2 million per year net income and
not show any interest expense. On the balance sheet of Company B at the end
of three years, the identical asset would appear at a cost of $11.5 million. Future
depreciation charges will vary between the two companies by a total of $1.5
million. Although the interest cost may be necessary to Company B, it does not
add to the utility of the asset.

—

ASC 835 is also the main source of U.S. GAAP on imputing interest on receiv-
ables and payables. However, ASC 835 guidance does not apply under the
following cofditions (ASC 835-30-15-3):

1. Pavables that arise in the ordinary course of business and are due in
approximately one year or less.

2. Amounts do not require repayment in the future, but rather will be
applied to the purchase price of the property, goods, or services to which
they relate rather than requiring a transfer of cash, except for amounts
promised in a contract with a customer.

3. Amounts represent security or retainage deposits.

4. Amounts arise in the ordinary course of business of a lending
institution.

5. Amounts arise from transactions between a parent and its subsidiaries,
or between subsidiaries of a common parent.

6. The interest rate is affected by the tax attributes or legal restrictions
prescribed by a governmental agency.

7. The application of the present value measurement (valuation) tech-
niques to estimates of contractual or other obligations assumed in con-
nection with the sale of property, goods or services.

8. Receivables, contract assets, and contract liabilities in contracts with
customers.

Receivables and payables that are not specifically excluded from the provi-

sions of ASC 835 and that are contractual rights to receive or pay money at a

fixed or determinable date must be recorded at their present value if (g) the
interest rate is not stated or (b) the stated interest rate is unreasonable (ASC

310-10-30-6).

PRACTICE NOTE: This is an application of the basic principle of substance
over form in that the substance of the instrument (interest-bearing), rather than
the form of the instrument (noninterest-bearing or bearing interest at an unrea-
sonable rate), becomes the basis for recording.

b




56,004 ASC835—Interest

ASC 835-20: CAPITALIZATION OF INTEREST

QUALIFYING ASSETS

Acquisition Period

In concept, interest cost must be capitalized for all asse i :

tior% per_z'od to get them ready for thei intended use (AS(:FSSg;?;g—equL—HZI;e jrcl i
perm.d is defined as the period commencing with the first expenc:li’ful? Hlittzon
qua_hfylmg asset and ending when the asset is substantially complete ande o
for its intended use. Thus, before interest costs can be capitalized, ex endl'fe.ad

must have been made for the qualifying asset, providing an inves:crneit bam]IES
wmch ‘to compute interest, and activities that are required to get the asset "
for its intended use must actually be in progress. T

The usual rules of materiality embodied in U.S. GAAP
e 1 ma S must be follo i
deterrpmmg the n}a'tenahty for the capitalization of interest costs. T}iflid X
applying the provisions of ASC 835, all the usual materiality tests useci ]1;1

applying other promulgated U.S. GAAP should also be used in d ini
. terminin
materiality for capitalization of interest costs. s aeter & the

Intended Use

CaPitalization of interest cost is applicable for assets that require an acquisiti
Perlod to prepare them for their intended use. Assets to which Ca:,lgitalizoil1
interest must be allocated include both (1) assets acquired for a company’s o .
use, (2)- assets intended for sale or lease that are acquired as discrete prc}:]' ect"Wn
’Fhe ordinary course of business, and (3) certain of an investor’s ]'nvestmen‘g'Q n:;
mvegtee accounted for under the equity method (ASC 835-20-15-5). Thus, i;;ven-
tory items that require a long time to produce, such as a real estate deveiopment
qualify for capitalization of interest costs. However, interest costs are noAt cl?dpital:

ized for inventories that are routinely produced in 1 itiog o o
basis (ASC 835-20-15-6). d laTge quAntRRRT @ repetis

‘ PRACTICE I':‘OINTEB: The FASB concluded that the benefit of capitalizing
interest costs on inventories that are routinely produced in large quantities does

not justify th.e cost. Thus, interest costs should not be capitalized for inventories
that are routinely produced in large quantities.

‘ C.apitalizaﬁon of interest cost is not permitted (a) for assets that are ready for
thellr intended use or that are actually being used in the earning activities of a
business and (b) for assets that are not being used in the earning activities of a

bU.S]_ILeSS aIld that are IlOfZ L]IldEIg()Hl t}le aCtl\rll'les [equ. d & lIEady for

COMPUTING INTEREST COST TO BE CAPITALIZED

The amount of interest cost that may be capitalized for any accounting period
may not exceefi the actual interest cost (from any source) that is incurred by an
enterprise during that same accounting period (ASC 835-20-30-6). In addition to
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aid and/or accrued on debt instruments, interest imputed in accor-

interest P
dance with ASC 835-30 (Imputation of Interest) and interest recognized on

. ance leases in accordance with ASC 842 (Leases) are available for capitaliza-
ASC 835 specifically prohibits imputing interest costs on any equity funds.
solidated financial statements, this limitation on the maximum amount of
interest cost that may be capitalized in a period should be applied on a consoli-

dated basis.

ton.
In con

—

PRACTICE NOTE: ASC 715 (Compensation—Retirement Benefits) re-
quires that the interest cost component of net periodic pension cost shall not be
considered to be interest for purposes of applying ASC 835.

Similarly, the interest cost component of postretirement benefit cost shall not
be considered interest for purposes of applying ASC 835.

—a -

PRACTICE POINTER: A logical starting point for applying ASC 835 and
ralated pronouncements is to determine the total amount of interest that was
incurred and that is available for capitalization as a cost of a gualifying asset. If a
company incurs little or no qualifying interest on debt instruments, interest
imputed in accordance with ASC 835-30, or interest on finance leases, the
requirement to capitalize interest may not be effective, even though the company
may have invested in assets that would otherwise require interest capitalization.

Average Accumulated Investment

To compute the amount of interest cost to be capitalized for a particular account-
ing period, the average accumulated investment in a qualifying asset during that
period must be determined. To determine the average accumulated investment,
each expenditure must be weighted for the time it was outstanding during the

particular accounting period.

llustration of Computing Average Accumulated Investment

In the acquisition of a qualifying asset, a calendar year company expends
$225,000 on January 1, 20X8; $360,000 on March 1, 20X8; and $180,000 on
November 1, 20X8. The average accumulated investment for 20X8 is computed

as follows:
Amount of Period from Expendiiure Average
Expenditure to End of Year Investment
$225,000 12 months (12/12) $225,000
360,000 10 months (10/12) 300,000
180,000 2 months (2/12) 30,000
$765,000 $555,000
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Identification of Interest Rates

If a specific borrowing is made to acquire the qualifying asset, the intere
incurred on that borrowing may be used to determine th
costs to be capitalized. That interest rate is applied to the average accumulateq
investment for the period to calculate the amount of capitalized interest Cost op
the qualifying asset. Capitalized interest cost on average accumulated inyeg.
ments in excess of the amount of the specific borrowing is calculated by the Use

of the weighted-average interest rate incurred on other borrowings Outstanding
during the period (ASC 835-20-30-3).

If no specific borrowing is made to acquire the qualifying asset, the
weighted-average interest rate incurred on other borrowings outstanding duri,
the period is used to determine the amount of interest cost to be capitalized. The
weighted-average interest rate is applied to the average accumulated investment
for the period to calculate the amount of capitalized interest cost on the qualify-
ing asset. Judgment may be required to identify and select the appropriate
specific borrowings that should be used in determining the weighted-average
interest rate. The objective should be to obtain a reasonable cost of financing for

the qualifying asset that could have been avoided if the asset had not been
acquired (ASC 835-20-30-4).

St rate
e amount of intereg

PRACTICE POINTER: In determining the weighted average interest rate for
purposes of capitalizing interest, take care not to overlook interest that is
available for capitalization even though it has another specific purpose. For
example, a company might have interest on mortgage debt on buildings and
plant assets. Unless that interest already is being capitalized into a different
asset under ASC 835, it is available for capitalization despite the fact that it w

as
incurred specifically to finance the acquisition of a different asset.

Progress payments received from the buyer of a qualifying ssset are de-
ducted in the computation of the average amount of accumuiaiec expenditures
during a period. Nonetheless, the determination of the average amount of

accumulated expenditures for a period may be reasonably estimated (ASC
835-20-30-5).

lllustration of Calculating Weighted-Average Interest Rate

A company has the following three debt issues outstanding during a year in
which interest must be capitalized as part of the cost of plant assets:

$1,000,000 par value, 8% interest rate
$1,500,000 par value, 9% interest rate
$1,200,000 par value, 10% interest rate

The weighted-average interest rate is computed as follows:
$1,000,000 x 8% = $80,000
1,500,000 x 9%

= 135,000
1,800,000 x 10% - 180,000
$4,300,000 = _$395,000
$395,000/$4,300,000 = 9.19%
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Interest available for capitalization is $3_95,000. .Assqmlng none 0; thet dru:g;
isues relates directly to the asset for which interest is being c_apltahze , inte
e harged to the cost of the asset at a 9.19% interest rate applied to the average
. ;nglent made on the asset during the year. If, instead, one of _the debt issues
m\|‘fa‘1ates. direcily to the asset for which interest is being capitalizeq, interest may be
:;iarged at the interest rate applicable to that del_:t.issge on the myestrrser:t teczju:}l[
to the amount of that debt. Interest on any remaining investment is calculate
the weighted-average interest rate for the remaining debt.

—

Capitalization Period

The interest capitalization period starts when three conditions are met (ASC
835-20-25-3):

1. Expernditures have occurred.

2. Akctivities necessary to prepare the asset (including administrative activi-
ties before construction) have begun.

3. Interest cost has been incurred.

i itali i interruptions initially by the
Interest is not capitalized during delays or in - tial
entity, except for brief interruptions, that occur du1'1r_1g jche acquisition of t1111e
ualif’ying asset. However, interest continues to be capitalized during externally
gnposed delays or interruptions (e.g., strikes) (ASC 835-20-25-4).

the qualifying asset is substantially complete apd. ready for its in-
tend:gihize, theqcapii;]igation of interest ceases. The qualifying asTetfmayt’Eg
completed in independent parts (ie., thel parts can be used separately from fhe
rest of the project, like units in a cor}dommlum). or in dependent paflfts' (;eéplike
that, although complete, cannot be used ur'ml _other parts are 1ru§ e ,d -
subassemblies of a machine). Interest capitalization ceases fqr an indepen ;
part when it is substantially complete and rea_ldy for its ‘mtf:nci.ed gse. 01;
dependent parts of a qualifying asset, howeyer, interest capltahzaném foei }ESH
stop until all dependent parts are substantially complete and ready for
intended use (ASC 835-20-25-5).

SPECIAL APPLICATIONS

Equity Method Investments

An investor’s qualifying assets, for the purposes of capitalizing interest C(t)sts
under ASC 835, include equity funds, loans, and advances madfe tg inves eei
accounted for by the equity method. Thus, an iqvestor must capl_tahzed interes

costs on such qualifying assets if, during that period, the investee i3 1;111 eil::-g(l):ir;%
activities necessary to start its planned princ1.pa1 operations 'and such ac 1V1Th

include the use of funds to acquire qualifying assets for its operations. he
investor does not capitalize any interest costs on or after the date that the
investee actually begins its planned principal operations.

e RS
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For the purposes of applying the above guidance, the term investor Mea,
both the parent company and all consolidated subsidiaries. Thus, all qualifyip
assets of a parent company and its consolidated subsidiaries that appear i the
consolidated balance sheet are subject to the interest capitalization Provisiong gf
ASC 835. Capitalization of interest cost in the investee’s separate financial
statements is unaffected by this guidance.

Capitalized interest costs on an investment accounted for by the equi
method are included in the carrying amount of the investment. Up to the date g
which the planned principal operations of the investee begin, the investoy
carrying amount of the investment, which includes capitalized interest costs (if
any), may exceed the underlying equity in the investment. If the investor cannoy
relate the excess carrying amount of the investment to specific identifiable assets
of the investee, the difference is considered goodwill (ASC 323-10-35-34),

Any interest cost capitalized is not changed in restating financial statementg
of prior periods. Thus, if an unconsolidated investee is subsequently consol.
dated in the investor’s financial statements as a result of increased ownership or
a voluntary change by the reporting entity, interest costs capitalized are not
changed if restatement of financial statements is necessary.

Tax-Exempt Borrowings and Gifts and Grants

Under the provisions of ASC 835, capitalized interest cost for a qualifying asset is
determined by applying either a specific interest rate or a weighted-averags
interest rate to the average accumulated expenditures during a particular periag
for the qualifying asset. An underlying premise in ASC 835 is that borrowings
usually cannot be identified with specific qualifying assets. The financirig poli-
cies of most enterprises are planned to meet general funding objectives, and the
identification of specific borrowings with specific assets is considered highly
subjective.

U.S. GAAP concludes that different circumstances are inyolved in the acqui-
sition of a qualifying asset with tax-exempt borrowings, such as industrial
revenue bonds and pollution control bonds. The tax-exempt borrowings, tempo-
rary interest income on unused funds, and construction expenditures for the
qualifying asset are so integrated that they must be accounted for as a single
transaction (ASC 835-20-30-10). Thus, capitalization of interest cost for any

portion of a qualifying asset that is acquired with tax-exempt borrowings is
required, as follows (ASC 835-20-30-11).

Capitalization Period

Interest cost is capitalized from the date of the tax-exempt borrowings to the date
that the qualifying asset is ready for its intended use.

Amount of Capitalized Interest Cost

The amount of capitalized interest cost allowable is equal to the total actual
interest cost on the tax-exempt borrowing, less any interest income earned on
temporary investments of the tax exempt funds. The net cost of interest on the
tax-exempt borrowing is capitalized and added to the acquisition cost of the
related qualifying asset (ASC 835-20-30-11).

ASC 835—Interest 56,009

 — I i ualifying asset is financed by tax-
- %gif}ji? . himéhigglﬁe“;};?otfh?hg bor¥ow§ed funds is restricted to
exem_P.t bo;e asse’;gs: or servicing the related debt. The restriction must be e.xtemal,
acqm'rm'gt ed by law, contract, or other authority outside the enterprise that
k.. m’fl}?eozmdsy This’ guidance does not permit the capitalization of interest
- ortior:t of a qualifying asset that is acquired with a gift or grant that
- atn}cfl 1t:)o the acquisition of the specified qualifying asset. Restnr_:tgd interest
] re;{;r;;n temporary investment of funds is considered an addition to the
inco.

restricted gift or grant.

e

PRACTICE POINTER: No interest cost should be capi?alized on qu;silcl:ifzicrj”nsgt
i i ifts or grants, because there is no econgm
assets acquired by restricted gi . ; onomie o
i ina i i iri th a gift or grant. In addition, any
financina involved in acquiring an asset wi : »an
?r:telrest sarnied on temporary investment of funds from a gift or grant is, in

substancz, part of the gift or grant.

Gisposition of Capitalized Interest

114 c;pitalized interest costs are added to the overall cost }?f an asse}i, t}:]'ﬁ tziat;sz;

i set, i i italized interest, may exceed the net realizable

of the asset, including capitalize : . le ot other

i d by U.S. GAAPD. In this event,
lower value of the asset that is require o
isi the lower value required by

ires that the provision to reduce the asset cost ’f.() : lue 1

S%UE%ZAP be ingreased. Thus, the total asset cost, including C?lpli’.athed mte§sé,

le'ss- the provision, will equal the lower value for the asset that is required by U.S.

GAAP (ASC 835-20-25-7). N o
Capitalized interest costs become an integral part of the alcqulslltmfn lrclos ) Zt

an asset and should be accounted for as such in the event of disposal of the ass

(ASC 835-20-40-1).
DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS

The total amount of interest costs incurred and ;harged to expepse;iczixglggrit;\e
period and the amount of interest costs, if any, which has been capltah e t I(JAS (5%
the period, should be disclosed in the financial statements or notes thereto

835-20-50-1).

lllustration of the Application of ASC 835

On January 1, 20X8, Poll Powerhouse borrowed.$300,00_0 from its Sarr:kaat a1n
annual rate of 12%. The principal amount plus |pterest is due on ;':1 uﬁ;}; o;‘
20Y0. The funds from this loan are specifically desl|gnated for the Cori]ﬁ[ ru;:s, e
a new plant facility. On February 1, 20X8, Poll paid $15,000 for architec

and for fees for filing a project application with the state government.

R
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On March 1, 20X8, Poll received state approval for the project and began
construction. The following summarizes the costs incurred on this project.

20X8
February 1 (architects’ and filing fees) $150
April 1 150’030
September 1 soloog
20X9 \
January 1
1
March 1 360,880
November 1 1 805003
Total Project Cost m
h—*—____—_,’{}o

The $1,000 is a miscellaneous cost and was expensed in 20X9, since it was
determined by Poll to be immaterial.

The following schedule summarizes the additional borrowings of Poll as of
December 31, 20X9;

) A
Borrowing Date Amount Maturity Date lnteresrnggra;
Mar. 1, 20X8 $1,000,000 Feb. 28, 20Y0 13%

Oct. 1, 20X9 $ 500,000 Sept. 30, 20Y1 14%

From February 1, 20X9, to March 31, 20X9, a major strike of construction
workers occurred, halting all construction activity during this period.

In August 20X9, Poll voluntarily halted construction for the entire month
because the chief executive officer did not want construction to continue without
her supervision during her scheduled vacation.

Calculation of Interest

Poll’s pew plgnt facility is a qualifying asset under the provisions of ASC 835 and
is subject to interest capitalization. The interest capitalization pernud begins on

the first date that an expenditure is made by Poll, which was for architects’ fees,
February 1, 20X8.

To_compute the interest capitalization for 20X8, the average accumulated
expenditures for 20X8 are first calculated as follows:

Amoupz‘ of Period from Average
Expenditure Expenditure io End of Year Investment
$ 15,000 11 months (11/12) $ 13,750
150,000 9 months (9/12) 112,500
60,000 4 months (4/12) 20,000
$225,000 $146,250

Next, the average investment amounts are multiplied by the interest rate on
the borrowing (12%). This rate is used because Poll has specifically associated
the borrowing with the construction of the new plant facility, and the average
accumulated investment ($146,250) does not exceed the amount of the borrow-

ing ($300,000). Therefore, the interest capitalized for 20X8 is computed as
follows:
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Average accumulated investment $146,250
Interest rate 129%
Capitalizable interest cost—20X8 $17,550

Since Poll incurred $144,333 of interest costs [($300,000 x 12%) +
($1,000,000 x 13% x 10/12)], the full $17,550 must be capitalized.

The investment in the asset for 20X8 ($225,000 + $17,550 capitalized
interest = $242,550) is included as part of the base to compute 20X9 capitaliz-
sble interest cost. One further adjustment is necessary to calculate the average
accumulated expenditures for 20X9. The plant facility was completed on Decem-
ber 31, 20X9, but there were two interruptions in construction in 20X9. Interes.t is
capitalized during delays or interruptions that are externally impos‘ed, or durlng
delays inherent in acquiring the qualifying asset. However, interest is not cap[tal-
ized during.delays or interruptions that are caused internally by an enterprise,
unless they. are brief. Thus, in this problem, interest capitalization continues
during (thiz” externally imposed sirike. However, interest capitalization ceases
during August 20X9, because the CEOQ’s vacation is a voluntary interruption.

The average accumulated investment for 20X9 is computed as follows:

Pariod from Expendiiure

Amount of to End of Year, Less One Average
Expenditure Month of Interruption Investment
$242 550 11 months (11/12) $222,338
360,000 9 months (9/12) 270,000
180,000 2 months (2/12) 30,000
$782,550 $522,338

Note: The $180,000 was expended on November 1, 20X9, after the inter-
ruption, so no adjustment need be made to the average expenditure of $30,000
for the interruption.

The $1,000 miscellaneous cost is not included, since Poll decided that this
amount was immaterial and expensed it.

It the average accumulated investment for the qualifying asset exceeds the
amount of the specific borrowing made to construct the asset, the capitalization
rate applicable to the excess is the weighted-average interest rate incurred on
other borrowings. In this problem, the computation of the excess investment over
the original loan amount is as follows:

Average invesiment through December 31, 20X9 $522,338
Less: Amount of original loan 300,000
Excess investment $222,338

Thus, in 20X9, interest on $222,338 of the $522,338 average investment is
capitalized using the weighted-average borrowing rate, whereas interest on the
balance of $300,000 is capitalized using the interest rate on the original loan
made specifically to acquire the qualifying asset. The weighted-average rate on
the other borrowings is computed as follows:
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A

Amount Weighted Amount Rate -’f?g;:gi

e A A b TT bkt [terest

$1,000,000 $1,000,000 13%  $1 30,000

500,000 125,000 (3 mos. 14%
bema  Shm il
1,500,000 ,125,00
1,500,000 31,125,000 Stazs0p
$147,500

= 13.11% weighted-average interest rate.
$1,125,000

The interest cost to be capitalized for 20X9 is computed as follows:
$300,000 X 12.00% =

$36,000

222,338 X 13.11% = 29,149
222338 _ 2549
_$522,338 865,149

Since Poll incurred $183,500 [($300,000 x 12%) + ($1,000,000 x 13%) +
($500,000 x 14% x 3/12)] of interest, the full $65,149 is capitalizable as part of
the acquisition cost of the asset in 20X9.

The total interest capitalized on the asset is $82,699 ($17,550 in 20X8 plus
$65,149 in 20X9). The total asset cost at the end of 20X9 is as follows:
Expenditures other than interest

$765,000
Interest cost capitalized

$82,699
$847,690

N -

PRACTICE NOTE: In this illustration, interest capitalized in 20X9 was b sed
on an investment amount from 20X8 that included the amount of \inierest
capitalized in 20X8. The authors have not found specific authoritative guidance
that supports the inclusion of previously capitalized interest ir e investment
base, but believes this is consistent with the inclusion of (nterest in other
situations and is logical in the circumstances.

ASC 835-30: IMPUTATION OF INTEREST

CIRCUMSTANCES REQUIRING IMPUTED INTEREST

A note issued or received in a noncash transaction contains two elements to be
valued: (1) the principal amount for the property, goods, or services exchanged
and (2) an interest factor for the use of funds over the period of the note. These
types of notes must be recorded at their present value. Any difference between

the face amount of the note and its present value is a discount or premium that is
amortized over the life of the note.
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PRACTICE POINTER: The interest rate on a note that results from a
business transaction entered into at arm’s length is generally presumed toblloe
fair. If no interest is stated or if the interegt stated appegrs unreaqua e,
however, record the substance of the transaction. Further, if rights or privileges
are attached to the note, evaluate them separately.

For example, a beer distributor lends $5,000 for two lyears al\t no interestto a
customer who wishes to purchase bar equipment. Therg is a tacit agreement t{wat
the customer will buy the distributor's products. In this eveni, a present vfa ue
must be established for the note receivable, and the dlﬁgrence betwegrl\ thel ace;
of the note ($5,000) and its present value must be considered an additional cos
of doing business for the beer distributor.

Circumstances requiring interest to be imputed as specified in ASC 835 are
gummarzed in Figure 56-1.

The present value techniques used in ASC $35 .should not be applied ’Fo
stimates of a contractual property or other obhga*_aons that are assuxlned u;
é;mnection with a sale of property, goods, or services such as an estimate
warranty for product performance.

PRACTICE NOTE: Interest that is imputed on certa_in _recgivables and
payables in accordance with ASC 835-30 is eligible for capitalization under the
provisions of ASC 835-20 (Capitalization of Interest).

APPLYING ASC 835-30 PRINCIPLES

Determining Present Value

There is no predetermined formula for determining an appropriate ir'lterest 11fate.
However, the objective is to approximate what the rate would have been, using the bﬁi?ﬂt’.’
terms and conditions, if it had been negotiated by an independent lender. The following
factors should be considered (ASC 835-30-25-12):

® (Credit rating of the borrower
® Restrictive covenants or collateral involved
® Prevailing market rates

¢ Rate at which the debtor can borrow funds

The appropriate interest rate depends on a combination of the above factors.
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Figure 56-1: Circumstances Indicating a Need to Impute Interest

Note exchanged for 1
property, goods, or services | |

Is interest
stated?

No

Is stated
interest rate
reasonable?

No

Is face
amount of note
materially different from
value inherent in the
transaction?*

Yes

N ;
® Record exchange at face e Record exchange o1 vaiue |
value of note ‘

inherent in transaction
* Recognize interest at ® Recognize interest at
stated rate

imputed rate

* Value inherent in transaction is the fair value of the property, goods, or

services or the market value of the note, whichever is more readily determin-
able.

PRACTICE POINTER: In determining an appropriate interest rate for pur-
poses of imputing interest for the purchaser in a transaction, a starting point
might be the most recent borrowing rate. The more recent the borrowing, the
more appropriate that rate may be. Even if the borrowing rate is recent, however,
give consideration to the impact that the additional debt from the earlier borrow-
ing would likely have on the company's next borrowing. The size of the transac-
tion for which interest is being imputed relative to other outstanding debt also
may be an important factor in determining an appropriate rate.
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Discount and Premium

The difference between the present value and.the face.amount of the recelva_ble

the payable represents the amount of premium or discount. A discount exists
3 present value of the total cash flow of the note (face amount plus stated
¥1:tti:lrf:sli), using the appropriate rate of interest, is less than the face amount of the
. A premium exists if the present value of the total proceeds of tl}e note (face
notgﬁptpplus stated interest), using the appropriate rate of interest, is more than
;I; face amount of the note.

The premium or discount is amortized over the life of tl}e note as mtifgg

ense Or income, using a constant rate on any outs_tar}dmg balance (
?3(5-30-35-2). This method is called the interest method and is illustrated at the end
of this chapter.

The premium or discount that arises from the use of present x_ialgu_es ozll}fash
and noncash transactions is inseparable from the related asset or habﬂ1w.d ere;
fore, premiurzis and discounts are added to or de;ducted from their relate assi
or liability/inthe balance sheet. Similarly, t_iebt issuance costs relah;d to a no i
must be feported in the balance sheet as a direct dgduchon from the ace am;)un
of that'riote. The discount, premium, or debt issuance costs resulting ;%ncl
imtulihg interest are not classified as deferred charges or credits (
#25-30-45-1A).

Disclosure

A description of the receivable or payable, the effect.ive interest rate, and the face
amount of the note should be disclosed in the financial statements or notes
thereto. The amortization of a discount or premium must be reported as mte;e}slst
expense in the case of liabilities or as interest income in the case of assets. The
amortization of debt issuance costs must also be reported as interest expense
(ASC 835-30-45-2, 3).

llustration of Interest Imputed and Accounted for on a Noninterest-Bearing
Note

A manufacturer sells a machine for $10,000 and accepts a $10,000 note
receivable bearing no interest for five years; 10% is an appropriate interest rate.
The initial journal entry would be:

Note receivable 10,000.00 o
Sales (present value at 10%) 6,209.
Unamortized discount on note 3,791.00

The manufacturer records the note at its face amount but records the sale at
the present value of the note because that is the value of the note Itoday. The
difference between the face amount of the note and its present value is recorded
as unamortized discount on note.

The interest method is used to produce a constant rate, which is applied to
any outstanding balance. In the above example, the present value of $6;209 was
recorded for the $10,000 sale using the appropriate interest rate of 10% for the
five-year term of the note. The difference between the $10,000‘sale :':md its
present value of $6,209 is $3,791, which was recorded as ungmomzed discount
on note, The 10% rate, when applied to each annual outstanding balance for the
same five years, will result in amortization of the discount on the note, as follows:
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Fair Value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to trangg
ansfer

liability in an orderly transaction b
etween market ici .
ment date (ASC Glossary). = PR At ieasurg

For the manufactuj;er or dealer, fair value usually is the normal sell
IES.S trade or volume discounts. Fair value may be less than the norm, ?g pl?ice
price, however, and sometimes less than the cost of the proper 3 Sellmg

; For others, fair value usually is cost less trade or volume discount :
value may be less than cost, however, especially in circumstances in whichi lF-alr
on

period elapses between the acquisition of t
inception of a lease. q of the property by the lessor and the

Finance Lease

A finance lease meets one or more of the followi iti

trar}sfers ownership to the lessee at the end of t}wizv‘{égge Ct(;?ilt:g?fgitfsosht};e e

option to plerchase that is likely to be exercised, has a lease t,erm for the essee an

of the: remaining economic life of the asset, or has minimum lease -

a residual value guarantee such that the present value of thcle) agurilr? n(t; a‘;nhd
e

payments is greater than or equal to sub 1 X
(ASC 842-10-25-2). q 0 substantially all of the fair value of the asset

Incremental Borrowing Rate

The:ﬂ lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is the rate of interest that th= lesse
wou d have had to pay at the inception of the lease to borrow the I*‘ﬁcis :
similar terms, to purchase the leased property (ASC Glossary) » ‘3

Initial Direct Costs

Initial direct costs are the incremental lease
] . costs that voi
incurred if the lease had not been obtained (ASC Glf)ss aiy)‘ ould not have been

Lease

Alease is a contract conveying the right to control the use of the identified

roperty, plant, or equi : y :
? ASP()I G%(osgary). quipment for a period of time in exchange for consideration

Lease Inception

The lease inception is the earlier of the date of the lease agreement or written

executed commitment that sets forth all of t inci isi
ction (ASC Clegasrg of the principal provisions of the

Lease Modification

A lease modification is a chan
ge to contract terms and conditi
the lease scope or consideration (ASC Glossary). rons that chates
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Lease Receivable
The lessor has a lease receivable measured on a discounted basis for its right to
ive lease payments from a sales-type or direct financing lease plus any

e
f-zzidual value guarantee (ASC Glossary).

Lease Term
The lease term includes all of the following (ASC Glossary):
o The noncancelable term.
s The period covered by an extension option that is reasonably certain to be
exercised.
e The period covered by a termination option that is reasonably certain not
to be exercised.
o The period covered by an option to extend or not to terminate in which
the ledser controls the option.

Leveragec Lease
Forhe lessor, a leveraged lease is a lease that commenced before the effective
date of ACS 842 and was classified as a leveraged lease in accordance with ASC

£40 (ASC Glossary).

Market Participants
Market participants are buyers and sellers with the following characteristics
(ASC Glossary):

o They are independent, non-related parties.

o They are knowledgeable and have a reasonable understanding of the
asset or liability and transaction using information that is readily availa-
ble and that is obtained through any customary due diligence efforts.

e They are able to enter into the transaction.

e They are willing to enter into the transaction.

Minimum Lease Payments

Minimum lease payments are the payments the lessee is obligated to or can be
required to make on the leased property except for contingent rentals, any lessee
guarantees of the lessor’s debt, and the lessee’s obligation to pay executory costs.

In leases with a bargain purchase option, minimum lease payments are only
required to include the minimum rental payments over the lease term and the
bargain purchase option payment. Otherwise, minimum lease payments include
all of the following:

* Minimum rental payments over the lease term.

e Any residual value guarantee. If the lessor can require the lessee to
purchase the property at lease termination, the purchase amount is con-
sidered a lessee residual value guarantee. If the lessee agrees to make up
any deficiency below a stated residual value amount, the minimum lease
payments should include the stated residual value, not an estimate of the
deficiency.
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® Any payment the lessee must make or can be required to make Upon
failing to renew or extend the lease at the end of its term.

® Payments made before the beginnin

g of the lease term using the same
interest rate used to discount lease pa

yments during the lease term

¢ Fees paid by the lessee to owners of a

special-purpose entity for structys.
ing the lease transaction.

Lease payments dependent on an existing index or rate should be includeq
in minimum lease payments based on the index or rate at lease inception. Leass
payments dependent on a factor directly related to the future, such as saleg

volume, are considered contingent rentals and are excluded from minimum lease
payments (ASC Glossary).

Net Investment in the Lease

The net investment in the lease is the sum

unguaranteed residual asset, net of any deferre
ing lease (ASC Glossary).

of the lease receivable and the
d selling profit in a direct finane-

Operating Lease

An operating lease is any lease other than a finance lease for a

lessee and any
lease other than a sales-type lease or direct financing lease for a les

SOT.

Penalty

The term penalty refers to any outside factor or provision of the lease agreewmnent
that does or can impose on the lessee the requirement to disburse cash, incur or

assume a liability, perform services, surrender or transfer an asset ot rights to an

asset or otherwise forego an economic benefit, or suffer an ecotinic detriment
(ASC Glossary).

Rate Implicit in the Lease

The implicit interest rate in the lease is the rate tha
aggregate present value of the lease payments pl
expect from the underlying asset at the end of the lease term to equal the fair

value of the underlying asset less any realizable investment tax credit that was
retained plus any deferred initial direct costs of the lessor (ASC Glossary).

t, at a given date, causes the
us the amount a lessor can

Related Parties

Related parties include (ASC Glossary):
® Entity affiliates.
® Entities for which investments in their equity securities are required to be
accounted for by the equity method by the investing entity.

® Trusts for the benefit of employees.
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ir immediate
The entity’s principal owners and management and their i
L] !
i ith i or signifi-
Other parties the entity may deal with if one party hasl‘c?:.str(c)jE e %?her
4 t influence over the management or operating polic
can

® P ver the manage-
Other ar t]eS Hlat lave C()Htrol or Slgmflcant mﬂuence ove . gh
mellt or O EIat]-Il 011C1es or }lave an OL\'I[QIS}[IP 1IlteIe8t n one Of t e

transacting parties.

Residual Value Guarantee

e ldual Valu-e gllaIaIltee 18 a gualalltee made tO tlle IESSOI Iegardlllg tlle
TEeS

it i f a lease
3 derlying asset when it is returned at the end o a

minimum value of an un
(ASC Glossary).

es-Type Lzase e
r "y: e lease is a type of finance lease that meets one foi:hmg; eofe ;k;,
s rriter . transfers ownership to the lessee at the end of the P
. Tesmee. option to purchase that is likely to be exercised, has. ale °
5 A ain (i the remaining economic life of the asset, or has mmm;?h "
B ciy a residual value guarantee such that the present vallcu-e 0 fhe
L pfat}g:;r;?;gnts is greater than or equal to substantially all of the fair va
sum o

of the asset (ASC 842-10-25-2).

i i i i untin
Separately identifying sales-type and direct financing leases ;s ﬁaeiféz: leasegs
i fzr the lessor only, who accounts for the two tjfz}ies ;35 e
ﬁf&fxently as described later in this chapter. Both types of leas

finance lease by the lessee.

Selling Profit or Selling Loss | N
At the commencement date, selling profit or selling loss equals (ASC G:?:ili)ase
e The lower of the fair value of the underlying as}-s:et1 or tze ;ﬁ :
receivable and any lease payments prepaid by the lessee, »
s The carrying amount of the underlying asset net of any unguaran
residual asset, minus
e Any deferred initial direct costs of the lessor.

Short-Term Lease

i hase that
A short-term lease has a term of 12 months or less and no option to purc
is reasonably certain to be exercised (ASC Glossary).

Unguaranteed Residual Asset

i ects to
An unguaranteed residual asset is the discounted amount a tlee:fsrt }?;(F e o
d rivegfrom the underlying asset at the end of the 1ez:iset e s
glelaranteed by either the lessee or a third party unrelated to

Glossary).




57,016 ASC 842 Leases

Variable Lease Payments

Variable lease payments are those that vary due to changes

stances other than the passage of time occurring after the ¢
(ASC Glossary).

in facts or Citcum.
ommencement daga

LEASE CLASSIFICATION

Lease components are classified separately at the commencement date of the
lease. Lease classifications are not reassessed unless the contract is modified byt 3
separate contract is not created, or, for the lessee, if the lease term or asse

of whether the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an option to purch
asset changes (ASC 842-10-25-1).

Ssment
ase the

If one or more of the following criteria is present at the inception of a lease, jt

is classified as a finance lease by the lessee and a sales-type lease by the lesgoy
(ASC 842-10-25-2):

1. Ownership of the asset is transferred to the lessee by the end of the leage
term.

2. The lease contains an option to purchase the asset that the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise.

3. The lease term is for the majority of the remaining economic life of the

asset. If the lease term begins near the end of the economic life of the
asset, this criterion does not apply.

4. The present value of the lease payments plus any residual value guaran
teed by the lessee not reflected in the lease payments equals or exccds
substantially all of the fair value of the asset.

5. The asset is specialized such that it is not expected to have an alternative
use to the lessor at the end of the lease term.

If none of the criteria above are met, the lease is classified a3 an operating
lease by the lessee and either an operating lease or direct financing lease by the
lessor. The lessor classifies the lease as an operating lease tnless the following

two criteria are met, in which case the lessor classifies the lease as a direct
financing lease (ASC 842-10-25-3):

1. The present value of the lease payments plus any residual value guaran-
teed by the lessee not reflected in the lease payments and/or any other

third party unrelated to the lessor equals or exceeds substantially all of
the fair value of the asset.

2. It is probable the lessor will collect the lease payments plus any residual
value guarantee.

In assessing the above criteria, there are some reasonable thresholds that
could be applied. Seventy-five percent or more could be considered the majority
of the economic life of the asset; likewise, if a lease begins during the last 25
percent, it could be considered to be near the end of the economic life of the asset.
When comparing the payment amounts to the fair value of the asset, 90 percent
could be considered to be substantially all of the fair value of the asset (ASC
842-10-55-2). Sometimes it is not practicable for an entity to determine the fair
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f an asset; in these circumstances, a lease should be classified without
0 ’

V#ue the criterion comparing the lease payments to the asset’s fair value (ASC

" 0-55-3). The fair value calculated should exclude any investment tax credits
ta;ed and expected to be realized by the lessor (ASC 842-10-55-8).
re

A lessor uses the rate implicit in the lease to assess the present value of the

and residual value guarantees. It should be -assgmed that ini’ri'al
not deferred if the fair value of the asset is different from its
t at the lease commencement date (ASC 842-10-25-4).

Jease paymen’fs
direct costs are

ing amour
Carrwaen determining if ownership of the asset is transferre@ at the.z endl tof't}:'_

term, an option to purchase the asset does not satisfy this cri elrloh )

E 1 of situations where ownership is transferred include leases where the
Exampdeiivers documents releasing and transferring ownership of the asset to
less?r s:e rovided the lessee performs in accordance with the hlaase terms or
;haeseiswhei}‘)e the lessee pays a nominal amount to transfer ownership of the asset
(;SC 842-10-55+4 through 55-6).

To agsess whether an asset has an alternative use at the end of the leasti te:IIali

ni‘ty should consider whether there are substanhve', enforceable contractu
gn ‘ev olions preventing the asset from having an alternative use to the lesso.r. T.h-e
:": o¥ ;hould also consider whether there are practical limitations such as s1gmlf11-
e Jt economic losses or unique design specifications that would prevent the
f:;lsor from being able to redirect use of the asset (ASC 842-10-55-7).

If a lease is acquired through a business combination or acquisition by a r}ot-
for-profit entity, the lease classification should remain the same unless t}51e1r$ isa
lease modification not accounted for as a separate contract (ASC 842-10-55-11).

Related Party Leases

Related party leases should be classified and accounted for as if the parties were
unrelated (ASC 842-10-55-12).

PRACTICE NOTE: Specific financial statement di_sclosures pertaining to
related parties are required by ASC 850 (Related Party Disclosures).

Leases Involving Governmental Units

Leases with governmental units often lack fair values, havg 1'11(:’1(3’&5:rmmeﬂ:fl(?l
economic lives, and cannot provide for transfer of ownership. Thesg S{)ema
provisions usually prevent their classification as any other than operating leases
(ASC 842-10-55-13).

Leases involving governmental units, how_ever, are _subject‘ t.o tk;le. se;g;
criteria as any other lease unless all of the following conditions exist; an in
event, these leases are classified as operating leases (ASC 842-10-55-13):

* A governmental unit or authority owns the leased property.

* The leased property is operated by or on behalf of a governmental unit or
authority and is part of a larger facility, such as an airport.
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e The leased property cannot be moved to another location becaus
permanent structure or part of a permanent structure.

® The governmental unit or authority can terminate the lease a

any time under the terms of the lease agreement, existing
regulations.

€ itig,

Breement o
statutes’ or

® Ownership is not transferred to the lessee and the lessee

cannot purchagg
the leased property.

® Equivalent property in the same area as the leased property canno pg
purchased or leased from anyone else.

Lease Modifications

A lease modification should be accounted for as a separate contract if both of the
following conditions apply:

® The modification grants the lessee an additional right of use not includeq
in the original lease.

® The lease payments increase proportionally with the standalone price of

the additional right of use, given the circumstances of the original
contract.

If a lease modification does not require that it be accounted for as a separate
contract, then reassessment of the lease classification should be as of the effective

date of the modification given the facts and circumstances at that date (ASC
842-10-25-8, 9).

If, before expiration of the lease term, a change in a lease occurs as a result ot
a refunding by the lessor of tax-exempt debt, it should be accounted for i the
same manner as any other lease modification (ASC 842-10-55-16).

When considering whether a master lease agreement should be teated as a
lease modification, if the lessee is allowed to use additional acsets during the
lease term but is not required to do so, the lessee taking caritro! over any such
additional asset should be accounted for as a lease miodification (ASC
842-10-55-18). If, however, the master lease agreement states additional assets the
lessee will gain control over during the lease term, the separate lease components
should be identified and consideration in the contract should be allocated across
those components (ASC 842-10-55-17)

Lessees

Lessees should reallocate the remaining consideration in a contract and
remeasure the lease liability using a discount rate determined at the effective

date of the lease modification if a contract modification does any of the following
(ASC 842-10-25-11):

® Grants the lessee an additional right of use not included in the original
contract.

® Extends or reduces the term of an existing lease other than through
exercising a contractual option in the lease.

° Changes only the consideration in the contract.
® Fully or partially terminates an existing lease.
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If one of the first three changes has occurred, the lessee recognizes thi

t of change in the lease liability from the remeasurement as an.ad]ustn}en

R« rresponding right-of-use asset. If the change was full or partial termina-

3 thefcon existing lease, the lessee decreases the carrying amount of the rlght—of—

s at roportionately to the change in the lease and any difference m_that

E assean}; the reduction of the lease liability should be recognized as a gain or
;?stnft the modification date (ASC 842-10-25-12, 13).

If the lease modification changes a finance lease to an operating 1e(ia_se, atrl}ly
trerence in the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset afte}' recording the
deferen t and the amount that would have occurred if operating right-of-use
ad]usmee;;urement guidance had been used should be accounted for in the same
i;;;g as a rent prepayment or lease incentive (A5C 8342-10-25-14).

Lessors

c=ating lease is modified and not accounted for as a separate _contract, the
E:;su:)ro E’};uuld %:reat this as termination of the exis’fir?g' lea.se and Ereatl(glﬁf)fdalgszz
Jez se commencing on the effective date of the modification. If the mo 1ed oase
s un operating lease, the lessor should include any prepaid or accrue d;- :
:entals relating to the original lease as part of the lease paymentslm thet?{)l 5186(:) !
lease. If the modified lease is a direct fin.j;xr'lcmg or sales-type easi, ctle az sor
should derecognize any deferred rent liability or accrued rent asset an j
the selling profit or loss as needed (ASC 842-10-25-15).

If a direct financing lease is modified and not accounted for as a separate
contract, the lessor should account for the modified lease as follows (ASC

842-10-25-16):

o If the modified lease is a direct financing lease, adjust the discount rate so
the initial net investment in the modified lease equals th_e Carryn;lg
amount of the net investment in the original lease prior to the
modification.

o If the modified lease is a sales-type lease, use the guidance ?n.ASC_842-30.
To calculate selling profit or loss, the fair value of the asset is its fair valui
at the modification date and its carrying amount is the carrying amount o
the net investment in the original lease prior to the modification.

e If the modified lease is an operating lease, the F:a;rying amount is tﬁe
carrying amount of the net investment in the original lease prior to the
modification.

If a sales-type lease is modified and not accounted for as a separate contrtact,
the lessor should account for the modified lease as follows (ASC 842-10-25-17):

e If the modified lease is a direct financing or sales—type lease, adjust tﬁe
discount rate so the initial net investment in the mcn.:hfled lease etquals the
carrying amount of the net investment in the original lease prior to the
modification.
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* If the modified lease is an operatin

carrying amount of the net investm
modification.

g lease, the carrying amount i
ent in the original lease prigy to fher

Contract Combinations

An entity can consider two or more contracts entered into near the same

least one of which is a lease, as a single transaction if any of the following

a]
(ASC 842-10-25-19): Pply

® The contracts are negotiated as a package with the same Commergia
objectives.

¢ The consideration in one contract depends on the price or performange of
the other contract.

® The contractual rights to use underlying assets are a single leage
component.

MEASUREMENT OF A LEASE
Lease Term and Purchase Options

An entity initially determines the lease term as the noncancelable period of the
lease along with periods covered by an option to extend the lease if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise the option or the option right is controlled by the
lessor, and periods covered by an option to terminate if the lessee is reasonabl
certain not to exercise the option or the option right is controlled by the lessor
(ASC 842-10-30-1). If there is a fiscal funding clause in the lease and the Ppossiil-
ity of it being exercised is more than remote, the lease term should only include
periods for which funding is reasonably certain (ASC 842-10-55-27).

All factors creating an economic incentive for the lessee shold be consid-
ered when determining the lease term. These factors may inclizde “omparing the
contractual terms for the optional periods with current mai

ket rates, significant
leasehold improvements expected when the option becomes exercisable, costs of

terminating the lease and signing a new lease, and the importance of the asset to
the lessee’s operations (ASC 842-10-55-26)

The lease term begins at the commencement date and includes any rent-free
periods provided to the lessee (ASC 842-10-55-25). In the case of a master lease
agreement covering several underlying assets, there may be multiple commence-
ment dates if the assets are made available for use on different dates (ASC
842-10-55-22). The noncancelable period is defined as the period during which
the contract is enforceable. If the lessee and lessor both have the right to
terminate the lease without permission from the other party and without signifi-
cant penalty, the lease is no longer enforceable (ASC 842-10-55-23).

In some contracts, the lessee may have possession or control over an asset
prior to making lease payments. The timing of when lease payments begin does
not affect the commencement date of the lease (ASC 842-10-55-20). If an entity
has a building or ground lease, the right to use the asset is the same during any
construction period as it is after construction so any lease costs or income

as

time, a¢

ASC 842—Leases 57,021

th the lease incurred or earned during a construction period should

SOCi'atEd Wid according to the guidance for lessees and lessors (ASC

e recogréilz)e

842—1’[(')11¢5351essee should only reassess the lease term or option to purchase the asset

: of the following occurs (ASC 842-10-35-1): |

- ionificant event or change in circumstances occurs that dlrectl‘y affects

i ?hslfge;;z’s probability of exercising an option to extend or terminate the
lease or purchase the asset. | )

o An event is written into the contract requiring the lessee to exercise or n
exércise an option to extend or terminate the lease.

o The lessee exercises an option it was previously determined it would not
be reasonably certain of exercising. | |
ion i i d it
e The lessee does not exercise an option it was previously determine
would be reasonably certain of exercising.
Giemifidant events that might cause a lessee to reassess t}}e. leasel ter?()(l)é
t {Jw I;urchase the asset could include construction offm%mﬁcall;t easl,jng :
e ignifi ification or customization of the asset, ma
. an-svements, significant modificatio: TR . pd
ﬂTpn{,e\;s decision%;irectly relevant to the lessee’s ablhty to exerasefant oph‘?rgu?d
l:A]ileasing the asset beyond the exercise date of the option. Mgrket ac or;l woule
- erally not qualify as a significant event that would require reassess
en -
%he Jease term or purchase option (ASC 842-10-55-28, 29). )
The lessor should only reassess the lease term or lessee option to purcare;i(;
the underlying asset if the lease is modified and not accounted for as a sep
contract (ASC 842-10-35-3).

Measurement of Lease Payments .
As of the commencement date, lease payments consist of the following (ASC
842-10-30-5):

e Fixed payments less any lease incentives paid or payable to the lessee.

Variable payments that depend on an index or rate and measured at that
index or rate at the commencement date.

o The exercise price of an option to purchase the asset if purchase is
reasonably certain.

Penalties for lease termination if reflected in the lease term. |

Fees paid to owners of a special-purpose entity for structuring the
transaction.

e For the lessee, probable residual value guarantees.

Payments that are in substance fixed payments are t?:el?{cecilo isaf;:ﬁ tp?;r
ments. In substance fixed payments may appear to be varlaf e ;Ents s H,lake
example, if the lessee has a choice about which of two sets.C 08 fza¥0_55-31) pake
but is required to make at least one set of payments (AS d o on: ease
incentives included in the lease payments include payments made to
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of the lessee and losses the lessor incurs b
with a third party (ASC 842-10-55-30).

y assuming a lessee’s pre-existing leage

The lessee includes a residual value guarantee in its lea
lessor has the right to require the lessee to purchase the asset at the
lease term. However, if there is a lease provision requiring the lesse
residual value deficiency if there is damage, extraordinary wear and tear, op
excessive usage, this does not constitute a residual value guarantee. If a Jeggeq
obtains a residual value guarantee from a third party, it should not reduyce the

lessee’s calculation of lease payments unless the lessor releases the lessee from jg
obligation (ASC 842-10-55-34 through 55-36).

end of the
e 1o pay a

Lease payments do not include (ASC 842-10-30-6):
¢ Any other variable lease payments.
® Lessee guarantee of the lessor’s debt.

® Amounts allocated to nonlease components.

Obligations to return an asset to its original condition at the end of the lease
term if modified by the lessee generally would not be considered lease payments
and would instead be accounted for following the guidance in ASC 410 (Asset
Retirement and Environmental Obligations). However, costs incurred from lease
requirements to dismantle and remove an asset at the end of the lease term
would generally qualify as lease payments (ASC 842-10-55-37).

Indemnification clauses that indemnify lessors for tax benefits that may he

lost if tax law changes would generally qualify as variable lease payments (ASC
842-10-55-38).

Lease payments should be remeasured by the lessee if (ASC 84210-35-4):
® The lease is modified and not accounted for as a separate corntract.

* A contingency related to the variable lease payments iz resolved such that
those payments are now considered lease payments.

® There is a change in: lease term, the assessment of the probability of the
lessee exercising an option to purchase the underlying asset, or the

amounts probable of being owed by the lessee under residual value
guarantees.

A lessor should not remeasure lease payments unless the lease is modified and
not accounted for as a separate contract (ASC 842-10-35-6).

Initial Direct Costs

A lessee or lessor’s initial direct costs may include commissions or payments
made to encourage an existing tenant to terminate its lease (ASC 842-10-30-9).
Costs that would be incurred whether or not the lease was obtained are not
initial direct costs; examples of these costs are fixed employee salaries, general

overhead expenses, advertising, and tax and legal expenses incurred prior to
obtaining the lease (ASC 842-10-30-10).

Se payments if gy
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ASC 842-20: LESSEE

LESSEE

Asset and Liability Recognition

Jessee recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the commence-
e
E;t date of the lease (ASC 842-20-25-1).

gport-Term Leases N
hort-term leases, the lessee can elect not to apply the recogni lq f
b ASC 842-20. This accounting policy election can be me_tde by class o
derl;lilng asset. If elected, lease payments are recognized in profit and lois;e(()jn ji
o t-line basis over the lease term. Variable lease payments are recogn 5
smlg;-iod in which the obligation for those payments occurs or becomes proba-
511: (ASC 84220-25-2, ASC 842-20-55-1).

If the lease changes and the lease term is extended by more ﬂ'lé:;lil 13;:;;1;&;;
from the end of the prior lease term or the 1.essee becomes reasona ylease 1ot
mcisitg an option to purchase, the lease is no longer a short-term - Th
z:f:; ;antl%ls change in circumstarnce serves as the effective commencement date in

shis instance (ASC 842-20-25-3).

m&ﬂt =]

Finance Leases | ) y
Unless the following costs are included in the carrying amoun.t of another asset,
the lessee should recognize in profit and loss (ASC 842-20-25-5):

» Amortization of the right-of-use asset.

» Interest on the lease liability. o
e Variable lease payments not included in the lease liability.

e Any impairment of the right-of-use asset.

Operating Leases

Unless the following costs are included in the carrying amoun't of another asset,
the lessee should recognize in profit and loss (ASC 842-20-25-6): )
i ini t of the lease over the
e Single lease costs allocating the remaining cos .
r;rrfairﬁng lease term on a straight-line basis unless there is another
method more representative of the benefit expected from the right to use
the asset.

o Variable lease payments not included in the lease liability.
* Any impairment of the right-of-use asset.

If the right-of-use asset is determined tf’ bz? impaired, the glqgle leaii Zc;f;i
should be calculated by adding: (1) amortization of t_he rerrfafnmg (;;sm e
impairment on a straight-line, or other more representative bas(ljs;, an ] tpameas
of the lease liability in the amount that produces a ?0'11Stal'ltb'1'sco‘§n]aice oo
each remaining period of the lease term on the remaining liability ba

842-20-25-7).

_;h;a
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For operating leases without impairment, the remainin

lease term consists of (ASC 842-20-25-8): ol thrOllghout the

® The fotal lease payments, paid and future, refl
ment or lease modification adjustment; plus

* Total initial direct costs attributable to the lease; less

ective of any Temeagy
e~

® The periodic lease costs recognized in prior periods
Lessee Measurement

The lessee measures both a lease liability and a right-of-use asset

Lease Liability

At the commencement date, the lease liabili

payments to be paid using the discount rate f

nents to | or the lease at commen
iﬁtelunp]{c1F in the lease should be used if it is readily deterrrljnable(je;?]:m. T'he
5 e essele s mcrementlal borrowing rate should be used. If the entity is’ not ErW1sle,
ie rma§f/ e e]clt to use a risk-free discount rate for a period comparable with thzl-llbhq
e ;nﬁnil; am(;)f its leases (C;ASC 842-20-30-1 through 30-3). The lease liabﬂity shjslsg

e measured in the same manner fo i
rate has changed since commencement (ASC 842_505_‘;533};@3““8 ronse unleai

ty is the present value of the lease

leaseAlf;egﬂﬁle I;:mgmencement date of a finance lease, the lessee measures the
¥ by decreasing the carrying amount b
. . . _ y any lease payments made
jasth ?:Essﬁgpﬁz carrying amount by interest on the lease liabiﬁt}z The mte:e(_-isv
ucing a constant periodic discount rate on th ini l
s the _ . _ e rem gl
liability and is recognized in the entity’s profit and loss (ASC 842—2()—?);[1“)Il N

If lease payments are remeasured after leage commencemer.i
Ly

- $ .
should recognize the remeasurement as an adjustment to the right.cf 250 el

o i ‘ ' -use ass
with any additional adjustment required after the asset’s carrying amount is zeig

reflected in the entity’s profit or loss (ASC ]
. . S pro 842-20-35-4). The diz
be adjusted in these situations to reflect the remaining lease p;;lrﬁnttziz: utll’lfe1

]ease [ZEI'IIl at t]]e date Of remeasureme t ull]e =) 1€ remea reme OCCu ed du

® Lease term.

® The assessment of whether the lessee will exercise a purchase option

* Amount probable of being owed under a residual value guarantee.

® Lease payments due to resolution of a

Yesse PuyEnts a5 based, contingency upon which variable

Right-of-Use Assef

At lease commencement, the right-of-use asset consists of (ASC 842-20-30-5):

® The amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability.

® Any lease payments pai
paid to the lessor on or before th
date less any lease incentives received. & commencemigy

® Any initial direct costs incurred.
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After the commencement date of a finance lease, the lessee measures the
right-ﬂf'use asset at cost less any accumulated amortization and impairment
Josses ( ASC 842-20-35-1).

After the commencement date of an operating lease, if the right-of-use asset
has not been impaired, it is measured at the amount of the lease liability,
adjuStEd for (ASC 842-20-35-3):

o Prepaid or accrued lease payments.

o The remaining balance of any lease incentives received and not yet

recognized in the lease cost.

¢ Unamortized initial direct costs.
o Impairment of the right-of-use asset.

Right-of-use assets for finance leases should be amortized on a straight-line
basis unless inere is another systematic basis more representative of the lease. If
the lease llatility is remeasured and the right-of-use asset adjusted, amortization
should beadjusted from the date of remeasurement forward (ASC 842-20-35-7).
The-amortization term should be from the commencement date to the earlier of
eend of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term
wiless the lessee is expected to exercise a purchase option, in which case
amortization should extend to the end of the useful life of the underlying asset
(ASC 842-20-35-8).

If a right-of-use asset may be impaired, use the guidance in ASC 360-10-35
(Property, Plant, and Equipment) to determine if the asset is impaired and to
recognize any impairment loss. If it is determined that a right-of-use asset is
impaired, it should be measured at its carrying amount after impairment less any
accumulated amortization (ASC 842-20-35-10).

Leasehold Improvements

The amortization term for any leasehold improvements should end with the
earlier of the useful life of the improvements or the lease term, unless the lessee is
expected to exercise a purchase option, in which case amortization should extend
to the end of the useful life of the improvements (ASC 845-20-35-12).

Subleases

If the original lessee is not relieved of its primary obligation under the original
lease, it becomes a sublessor and accounts for the sublease as follows (ASC
842-20-35-14):

e [f the sublease is an operating lease, continue accounting for the original
lease in the same manner. If the lease cost for the sublease term exceeds
the expected sublease income, this indicates the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset may not be recoverable.

e If the original lease was a financing lease and the sublease is a sales-type
or direct financing lease, derecognize the original right-of-use asset and
continue to account for the lease liability in the same manner as the
original lease. Evaluate the investment in the sublease for impairment.

S



